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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good

          3  morning.  My name is Madeline Provenzano and I Chair

          4  the Committee on Housing and Buildings.  On behalf

          5  of the Committee, I would like thank all of you,

          6  those of you that are here, for attending today's

          7  Hearing. There are two items on today's agenda,

          8  Intro. Number 605, a Local Law to amend the

          9  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         10  relation to area limitations on benefits pursuant to

         11  Section 421 a of the Real Property Tax Law relating

         12  to building services. And, proposed Intro. 607- A, a

         13  Local Law to amend the Administrative Code of the

         14  City of New York in relation to the exemption from

         15  taxes of certain multiple dwellings for certain

         16  lead- based paint activities.

         17                 Intro. 605 would create an exclusion

         18  zone within the Borough of Brooklyn, in the

         19  Greenpoint/Williamsburg neighborhood, whereby tax

         20  benefits under the 421- a tax benefit program would

         21  be prohibited unless there was an agreement that all

         22  building service employees employed at the building,

         23  that is the building that received the tax benefit,

         24  would receive the applicable prevailing wage for the

         25  duration of that building's tax exemption period.
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          2                 This legislation was crafted to

          3  ensure that building service workers employed in the

          4  anticipated newly constructed housing in this area

          5  would receive decent wages and benefits at buildings

          6  that receive this type of government subsidy.

          7                 Under the building's provisions, the

          8  failure to pay the then current prevailing wage to

          9  any building service employee at any time during the

         10  duration of a building's 421- a tax exemption, would

         11  result in the revocation of any tax benefits that

         12  were received pursuant to Section 421- a of the Real

         13  Property Tax Law, retroactive to the start of the

         14  building's construction.

         15                 As many of us in this room are aware,

         16  the Greenpoint/Williamsburg area of Brooklyn is

         17  subject to a rezoning proposal approved by the

         18  Department of City Planning this month. This

         19  rezoning covers approximately 184 blocks within

         20  Community Board One.  The primary goals of the

         21  rezoning, as set forth by City Planning, are to

         22  facilitate new housing and commercial development on

         23  vacant and underutilized land currently zoned

         24  primarily for industrial uses, and to provide for

         25  redevelopment of public access along the waterfront.
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          2                 The proposal, as approved by City

          3  Planning, is projected to result in the production

          4  of approximately 9,000 units of housing and

          5  privately owned sites.

          6                 The Committee welcomes testimony

          7  about the impact of this legislation on community

          8  development, including the provision of affordable

          9  housing and welcomes testimony on the impact of this

         10  legislation as it relates to the economic benefits

         11  to workers and to the City.

         12                 The provisions of Intro. Number 607

         13  are meant to clarify when the receipt of J- 51 tax

         14  benefits for the abatement of lead- based paint

         15  hazards may be granted.  The legislation is intended

         16  to apply to existing dwellings, including the common

         17  areas of such buildings.  The bill would permit the

         18  receipt of J 51 tax benefits for the abatement of

         19  lead- based paint in an existing dwelling unit,

         20  whether the unit was vacant or not, regardless of

         21  whether the dwelling unit was occupied or not

         22  occupied by a child under the age of seven.

         23                 Presently, J- 51 tax benefits may be

         24  obtained by residential owners for the remediation

         25  of lead- based paint hazards and dwelling units
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          2  occupied by a child under the age of seven.  Prior

          3  to Local Law One of 2004, J- 51 benefits for lead

          4  based paint abatement work was only permitted by the

          5  Department of Housing, Preservation and Development,

          6  when the work was designed to eliminate lead- based

          7  paint hazards in an existing dwelling after someone

          8  had already been identified as having lead

          9  poisoning.

         10                 You should note that the version

         11  proposed Intro. Number 607- A before the Committee

         12  today is dated April 20, 2004, at 1:00 p.m.

         13                 Significantly, Intro. Number 607 was

         14  amended to provide that the certified, reasonable

         15  cost used by HPD with regard to an abatement of

         16  lead- based paint hazards would be equated to the

         17  actual contractual cost for such abatement.  This

         18  language would restore the existing provisions that

         19  were contained in the HPD rules prior to the

         20  enactment of Local One of 2004.

         21                 In addition, language in the bill was

         22  added to eliminate the additional fee or penalty

         23  imposed by the Department of Finance for the failure

         24  to notify the Department of Finance at least 45 days

         25  in advance of the start of lead- based paint
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          2  abatement work.

          3                 The existing HPD rules require early

          4  notification of all jobs for which J- 51 tax

          5  benefits will be claimed, including lead- based

          6  paint abatement work --  it's hard to say, you know,

          7  lead- based paint abatement -- and requires that

          8  reasonably accurate cost estimates be provided at

          9  this time of early notification.

         10                 Owners have claimed that estimates

         11  concerning the cost of work with regard to lead-

         12  based paint abatement are not as certain as for

         13  other types of work, and it is not until the work is

         14  completed that the actual cost be determined.

         15                 This Committee anticipates hearing

         16  from representatives of the Department of Housing,

         17  Preservation and Development and from other

         18  interested persons, including representatives of the

         19  real estate industry, with regard to both items of

         20  legislation on today's agenda.

         21                 We will be hearing testimony first on

         22  607- A, which is the lead- based paint bill.  There,

         23  it may get a little confusing, there may be some

         24  people that may want to come up and testify on both.

         25    I am joined by the sponsor of the lead- based
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          2  paint bill, Council Member Martinez.  Would you like

          3  to say a few words?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you

          5  Madam Chair. I want to thank you for your leadership

          6  and understanding the importance of this bill.  As

          7  you know, the intent of the bill is two- fold.

          8                 One, to take a proactive approach in

          9  dealing with the issue of lead- based paint and

         10  ensuring the safety of our children in our

         11  communities.

         12                 Two, also looking at possibilities in

         13  which we could help owners also deal with the

         14  situation of lead- based paint and also taking a

         15  proactive approach in just getting the lead out and

         16  not waiting for children to move into apartments

         17  where there is lead- based paint.

         18                 At the same time, looking at the

         19  possibility when today, in the City of New York,

         20  there is a lot of talk of affordability and the

         21  preservation of affordable housing in our

         22  communities, looking to see how we do not add

         23  additional burden to residents in our communities

         24  when lead repairs and gutting of apartments due to

         25  lead- based paint are conducted, to see how we could
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          2  preserve the rents in those empty apartments and the

          3  rent will not increase.

          4                 I hope today that we hear from the

          5  Administration how, from HPD, how we could meet

          6  these objectives and these goals.  Again, there's

          7  one principal thing that we need to focus on this,

          8  and that is the safety of our children and taking a

          9  proactive approach in just getting rid of lead in

         10  our communities.  Thank you Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         12  We're also joined by Council Member Tony Avella.

         13  Thank you Council Member Martinez.  I would like to

         14  say, because I see it hasn't happened, that I want

         15  my name added to this bill right after yours.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have

         18  Harold Shultz, Special Counsel and Joseph Rosenberg,

         19  Deputy Commissioner from the Department of Housing,

         20  Preservation and Development.  You're on.  Hi.

         21                 MR. SHULTZ:  Thank you Chairwoman

         22  Provenzano. Good morning Chairwoman and Members of

         23  the Housing and Buildings Committee.  I am Harold

         24  Shultz, Special Counsel to the Commissioner at the

         25  Department of Housing, Preservation and Development.
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          2    Intro. 607- A would provide J- 51 benefits to

          3  landlords for lead- based paint abatement in any

          4  existing residential multiple dwelling, whether the

          5  unit is vacant or occupied, including the common

          6  areas of the building.  The bill would also require

          7  that 100 percent of the actual costs of the lead

          8  paint abatement be used to calculate the tax

          9  benefit. Lastly, it eliminates the late fee that HPD

         10  imposes on landlords who do not notify the

         11  Department at least 45 days prior to the

         12  commencement of work.

         13                 HPD supports providing J- 51 benefits

         14  to owners for lead- based paint abatement in vacant

         15  and occupied units and in common areas of

         16  residential buildings.  The decline in childhood

         17  lead poisoning over the past 30 years is a

         18  remarkable public health story.  We believe that

         19  providing J- 51 benefits to owners to abate lead-

         20  based paint in their buildings will help to continue

         21  this trend.  The Administration supports encouraging

         22  the safe remediation of lead paint hazards in

         23  residential housing.

         24                 While we support the concept, we

         25  cannot support the language that requires 100
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          2  percent cost reimbursement for J 51 benefits.  This

          3  last requirement leaves the door open to potential

          4  abuse.

          5                 Abatement work in New York City can

          6  only be performed by EPA- certified firms and

          7  individuals and there are relatively few firms

          8  certified.  Owners may not be familiar with the

          9  average or actual cost of abatement work.  So, this

         10  could be an opportunity for them to be gauged.

         11  Because the City would be covering the full cost of

         12  the abatement work through the tax benefit, the

         13  owners would have very limited incentive to contact

         14  other firms and find a better price.

         15                 Additionally, unlike the rest of the

         16  J- 51 program, this legislation requires HPD to

         17  accept the actual contract cost, without any

         18  schedule of what is reasonable for abatement work.

         19  How is HPD to know if the cost submitted is

         20  justified?  Similar owners, excuse me, similar

         21  owners doing similar work will get different tax

         22  abatements if they pay different prices.  This last

         23  provision is not based on any financial analysis and

         24  opens the City's tax abatement programs to potential

         25  overpayments and even fraud.  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I'd also

          3  like to introduce Council Member Hiram Monserrate.

          4  Thank you for joining us.  Oh, I didn't see you,

          5  you're hiding her Tony, and Councilwoman Gale

          6  Brewer.  Do we have any questions?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Just a

          8  comment.  I have the Manhattan Delegation Hearings,

          9  which I may have to go back to.  I just wanted to

         10  let you know.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         12  Council Member Martinez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you

         14  Madam Chair. When the 100 percent cost

         15  reimbursement, the concern that HPD has, is there

         16  any way we can find a market rate estimate that we

         17  could add or calculate into the, to make the

         18  determination?

         19                 MR. SHULTZ:  Well --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  What have

         21  you thought about that?

         22                 MR. SHULTZ:  -- And that's actually

         23  normally the way that we do it, because we normally,

         24  we keep a list of certified reasonable costs and

         25  that's normally how, and we, and that's what we set
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          2  forth in rules.  So, I think we would be prepared to

          3  look at what the certified reasonable cost is for

          4  lead paint abatement again and address that in our

          5  rules.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Now, on the

          7  issue of affordability, is it a right statement or

          8  the accurate statement to say that if we now have a

          9  vacant apartment and the landlord takes a proactive

         10  approach in removing the lead in the apartment and

         11  having available the J- 51 benefit available to that

         12  landlord, would it be accurate to say that we're

         13  taking a step forward to preserving the

         14  affordability of that rent?

         15                 MR. SHULTZ:  Preserving the

         16  affordability of the rent.  Well it is a, there is

         17  an incremental benefit to that.  As you know, in New

         18  York City currently, in any pre- 1960 apartment, you

         19  are already required to address any lead hazards, to

         20  remediate any lead hazards and you are already

         21  required to abate all friction impact surfaces,

         22  window sills and floors and to make at least part of

         23  them lead- free.  So, this would, in fact, provide

         24  additional benefit to owners to doing additional

         25  work and presumably getting a benefit for them,
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          2  which would hopefully be reflected in less of an

          3  increase on the rent.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Now, when

          5  you mentioned the word on your statement that abuse,

          6  what do you mean by that? What do you mean by, what,

          7  fraud and abuse, that it may lead to potential fraud

          8  and abuse of the benefit by owners?

          9                 MR. SHULTZ:  Well, you have several

         10  problems with fraud and abuse in this context.  So,

         11  for instance, if I'm required to accept the invoice

         12  that was submitted, and somebody does 100 square

         13  feet of wall in one apartment and charges $1,000.00

         14  for it, let's say, for sake of illustration.  And,

         15  somebody else submits a $5,000.00 estimate for it,

         16  even though $1,000.00 is what it really costs.

         17  Under this law, I would be required to accept the

         18  $5,000.00 invoice.

         19                 There's also no way for me to really

         20  check on that, because if 100 square feet of wall

         21  surface was done, but somebody charged $5,000.00 for

         22  it, as opposed to somebody charging $1,000.00 for

         23  it, under this, under this statute, as drafted, I'd

         24  be required to give one guy $1,000.00 benefit and

         25  the other guy a $5,000.00 benefit, because there's

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  no way I could tell whether -- if the work is done,

          3  there's no way I have, there's no authority that I

          4  have to say that was the wrong price.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And how do

          6  you do your check and balances now?

          7                 MR. SHULTZ:  We set forth, we

          8  determine what we believe to be reasonable costs are

          9  for a variety of different kinds of work, and you

         10  cannot claim more than the certified reasonable cost

         11  that's set forth in our schedule.  Therefore, all we

         12  need to do then, when we audit, is to see that the

         13  work was done, because we already know what the

         14  right price is.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Well, I

         16  hope that as we move forward, and I want to thank

         17  the Chair, again, for holding this first Hearing, as

         18  we move forward and I know that the Administration

         19  and conversation I've had with the Commissioner, he

         20  is very much inclined and understand the intent of

         21  the legislation.  I hope, as we move forward, we

         22  continue the dialogue among HPD, owners, tenants and

         23  us, the Council, to see how we can come to a

         24  compromise in determining the percentage that would

         25  be eligible for the removal of lead poison.
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          2                 I think that the bottom line here and

          3  the main intent here, how do we, as a City, take a

          4  proactive approach rather than waiting for a child

          5  to move into an apartment where there is lead.

          6  Let's just get it over with, let's remove it and

          7  let's ensure that this child's going to be in an

          8  environment where he's safe.  I want to thank you

          9  for your testimony.  I want to thank the Chair again

         10  and I look forward to continuing the dialogue in

         11  which we can come to an agreement and to the

         12  percentage.

         13                 MR. SHULTZ:  We're happy to continue

         14  that dialogue.  As our statement says, we support

         15  the concept of this bill.  We just have questions

         16  about the language used for its implementation.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We've also

         19  been joined by Council Member Melinda Katz.  When

         20  you are certain the cost, as you said you do, I

         21  would assume that means that you go in before hand,

         22  look at the job and say, we estimate that it's going

         23  to cost blah, blah, blah?

         24                 MR. SHULTZ:  Actually, no.  The

         25  volume in J- 51 would be too great to say, to do it
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          2  that way. --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That's,

          4  yeah.

          5                 MR. SHULTZ:  What we do, actually, is

          6  we use our own construction experience to basically

          7  promulgate a list of potential jobs.  So, we will

          8  say that, if, for example, you're replacing a wall

          9  surface, we know that on average that should cost

         10  say $1.25 --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Of such and

         12  such a size-

         13                 MR. SHULTZ:  -- Per square foot,

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  -- It should

         15  cost.  Okay.

         16                 MR. SHULTZ:  Right.  So, then you

         17  submit an invoice as part of your J- 51 application,

         18  which says, I did 100 square feet.  Then, we then

         19  will audit J- 51 jobs.  If you did 100 square feet

         20  in that apartment and we've, you know, we've set

         21  whatever our certified reasonable cost is, then, you

         22  know, then it's okay.  To actually attempt to cost

         23  out every job would be hugely labor intensive.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Are owners'

         25  costs for lead abatement used as a factor to
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          2  increase the rent or to de regulate the apartment?

          3                 MR. SHULTZ:  Well, I'm not an expert

          4  on, on individual apartment improvement increases.

          5  Certainly, some kinds of increases would get

          6  calculated in, some kinds of work would get

          7  calculated into potential increases.  I'm not

          8  exactly sure if this kind of work would.  Yeah, J-

          9  51 also, you want to answer this?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:

         11  Right, just thinking about the -- Joe Rosenberg,

         12  Deputy Commissioner Intergovernmental.  I'm quite

         13  sure that state law requires that any owner that is

         14  obtaining J- 51 benefits has to have the building

         15  rent regulated for the period, for the duration of

         16  the exemption.  So, there is a protection there,

         17  certainly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

         19  you.  Council Member Monserrate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         21  very much Madam Chair for the opportunity to direct

         22  some questions on a very important piece of

         23  legislation.  As you know, there was quite a

         24  movement when this Council originally enacted the

         25  lead paint protections that ultimately were passed
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          2  into law.

          3                 As I'm listening to your testimony,

          4  Mr. Shultz, I have a few questions I'd like to pose

          5  you.  First and foremost, with respect to the, I

          6  would term it as reimbursements or to the crediting

          7  process.  Prior, the HPD had regulations that

          8  allowed the owners to recoup their actual costs, was

          9  that not the case?

         10                 MR. SHULTZ:  Not exactly.  I believe

         11  the prior regulations allowed owners to recoup their

         12  actual costs in a case where there was a lead

         13  poisoned child and to the extent of the work scope

         14  that had been specified by the Department of Health

         15  in order to correct the lead hazard conditions that

         16  they found. That meant, in those cases, the scope of

         17  work was specifically limited to one that had been

         18  defined by another government agency.

         19                 On top of that, the number of lead

         20  poisoned children who got such orders from the

         21  Department of Health was relatively small, only a

         22  few hundred a year.  So, you weren't talking about,

         23  you know, a very large number of potential jobs.

         24  Here, we're talking about tens of thousands, if not

         25  hundreds of thousands of potential jobs.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So, in

          3  essence, that hasn't changed at all, is that

          4  correct?  Or, are your new regulations have had an

          5  impact on that also?

          6                 MR. SHULTZ:  The new regulations have

          7  supplanted the old regulations.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  The new

          9  regulations, excuse me, I didn't hear that.

         10                 MR. SHULTZ:  The new regulations

         11  supplanted the old regulations.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Is there

         13  any marked difference between the new regulations,

         14  specifically of what you have testified now, and the

         15  old regulations?

         16                 MR. SHULTZ:  Yes.  The old

         17  regulations limited the people who could get a J- 51

         18  only where there was an actual lead poisoned child

         19  in the apartment.  So, that was only, at best, a few

         20  hundred a year.  The new regulations allow anybody

         21  who is doing lead abatement work in an occupied

         22  apartment, where there's a child under seven, to get

         23  a J- 51.  The new regulations, actually even prior

         24  to this bill, vastly expanded the number of

         25  situations in which an owner could get a J- 51
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          2  abatement.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  My next

          4  question is, you testified that under the new HPD

          5  regulations, owners have to pay a penalty if they

          6  don't notify the Finance Department more than 45

          7  days before the start of their work.  What is the

          8  purpose of the notification requirement?

          9                 MR. SHULTZ:  The purpose of the

         10  notification requirement in J- 51 is to allow the

         11  Department of Finance to conduct a pre- rehab

         12  inspection to determine the, basically the assessed

         13  value of the property before the rehab and then to

         14  re determine it after the rehab, so they have a

         15  baseline to know the extent to which they should be

         16  exempting the property from an increased assessment.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  This is

         18  regarding the assessment, but not the actual cost of

         19  the abatement, is that correct?

         20                 MR. SHULTZ:  Yeah, they're two

         21  different issues. I mean, the cost of the abatement

         22  for, for the Department of Finance, the essence of

         23  J- 51 is to get an abatement from the, one of the

         24  essences of J- 51, and there are at least two, is to

         25  get an abatement from the increased, increase in
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          2  value of the property.

          3                 So, the, so the procedure allows for

          4  DOF to, in effect, baseline the property before the

          5  rehab, so that an owner couldn't claim that other

          6  things that they had done prior to the J- 51 were,

          7  in fact, part of the J- 51, and get an abatement for

          8  things they had done before.  So, the Department of

          9  Finance could get a snapshot of the property before

         10  the rehab, and then abate the additional J- 50 (sic)

         11  work.  So, if they needed to adjust the assessment

         12  prior to the rehab, they could do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So, your

         14  regulation, in essence, has very little to do with

         15  your agency's interest with respect to lead paint

         16  and more to do with the Department of Finance's

         17  positioning on assessment.  Is that not correct?

         18                 MR. SHULTZ:  Right.  But, that

         19  regulation wasn't specific for lead.  That

         20  regulation was an across the board J- 51

         21  requirement.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Finally,

         23  the issue of the existing law, the J- 51 benefit for

         24  de- leading of an apartment only when it's occupied

         25  and not when it's, not when the apartment is vacant,
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          2  could you explain what the relevance of that is?

          3                 MR. SHULTZ:  That's what Local Law

          4  One says and I believe this Committee's report on

          5  Local Law One with regard to that provision also

          6  clearly states that that is the Committee's intent,

          7  and I believe that's what it says.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  My last

          9  question is, how many applications for J- 51

         10  benefits for de- leading have been made since Local

         11  Law One was passed?

         12                 MR. SHULTZ:  I have no idea.  We

         13  could get back to you on that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Can you

         15  estimate at all?  I wouldn't hold you to an exact

         16  figure, has to be an amount, more or less, a

         17  ballpark.

         18                 MR. SHULTZ:  I, since I don't really

         19  know the number, I wouldn't, I would not like to

         20  guess at the number.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Does the

         22  Deputy Commissioner know the number?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  No, I

         24  don't either.  I mean, if, if we had a sense of what

         25  the number was, we'd clearly give it to you.  We'll
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          2  found out today and get back to the Committee and

          3  give you that information

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          5  very much. Thank you Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  As a follow-

          7  up to Council Member Monserrate, would you have any

          8  idea how many applications were filed prior to Local

          9  Law One?  When --

         10                 MR. SHULTZ:  Once again, I know --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  -- It would

         12  have to be a lead --

         13                 MR. SHULTZ:  Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  -- Poisoned

         15  child?

         16                 MR. SHULTZ:  I don't know the number.

         17    Honestly, I don't think there were very many.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You don't

         19  think there were very many?

         20                 MR. SHULTZ:  No, I don't.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We've been

         22  joined by Councilwoman Letitia James and I think

         23  that's it.  Do we have any more questions?  Okay.

         24  Now we'll hear from HPD Rafael Cestero, you're going

         25  to testify on 605, okay.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  That's

          3  correct. Good morning Chairwoman Provenzano and

          4  Members of the Housing and Buildings Committee.  I

          5  am Rafael Cestero, I'm the Deputy Commissioner of

          6  Development at the Department of Housing,

          7  Preservation and Development.

          8                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          9  discuss our concerns with Intro. 605.  This bill

         10  would require all developers of multiple dwellings

         11  who receive 421- a tax benefits to pay prevailing

         12  wage to specifically named trades covered by Local

         13  32BJ in the proposed Greenpoint/Williamsburg

         14  rezoning area that is currently pending before

         15  Council.  It would also require HPD to withdraw

         16  owners' 421- a tax benefits if they do not pay such

         17  prevailing wage.

         18                 As you know, the 421- a program

         19  encourages the construction of multi- family housing

         20  through the provision of tax benefits.  The program

         21  has been very successful in generating affordable

         22  housing throughout the City, by providing extended

         23  benefits in exchange for affordable housing.  This

         24  exchange of tax benefits for affordable housing has

         25  proven to be an effective tool for maintaining low
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          2  operating expenses and allowing rents to remain

          3  affordable.

          4                 The rezoning of Greenpoint and

          5  Williamsburg is a very comprehensive effort that

          6  encompasses approximately 180 blocks of these

          7  Brooklyn neighborhoods.  Waterfront developments

          8  will likely use prevailing wage labor due to the

          9  high density and the expected strong market

         10  conditions.  However, the upland neighborhoods will

         11  have significantly lower densities, smaller lot

         12  areas and varying market conditions.

         13                 In fact, 78 percent of the projected

         14  upland developments will be less than 50 unit

         15  buildings.  The requirement of prevailing wages in

         16  small scale buildings, whether all market rate or

         17  those buildings with an affordable component, makes

         18  on- going operations less feasible.  Affordable

         19  housing projects are especially vulnerable because

         20  they work within limited profit margins.  Increased

         21  operational costs would result in reduced viability

         22  of affordable housing, operation and production.

         23                 Based on our analysis of a typical

         24  upland project, the imposition of prevailing wage

         25  requirement on these projects will reduce
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          2  developers' returns by eight percentage points.

          3  This is particularly alarming in an era when land

          4  costs, construction costs and operating costs are

          5  all sky- rocketing.  The confluence of these factors

          6  could make upland housing development infeasible.

          7                 In addition to these affordable

          8  housing considerations, the bill, if passed, would

          9  impose an excessive administrative burden on HPD.

         10  For example, the agency would have to create a new

         11  division for administrative hearings to review,

         12  among other tasks, claims of employees in the

         13  Greenpoint/Williamsburg community who may not have

         14  been paid prevailing wages.  This new role would

         15  effectively put HPD, the affordable housing agency,

         16  in the position of enforcing the State's labor laws.

         17                 We are keenly aware that the local

         18  Greenpoint and Williamsburg community residents,

         19  their elected officials and housing advocates are

         20  deeply concerned about the percentage of affordable

         21  housing units to be built in the newly rezoned area.

         22  City agencies have met with elected officials and

         23  community representative to develop programs that

         24  strongly incentivize the development of affordable

         25  housing.  These discussions are on going and we are
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          2  certain that we will achieve a solution that

          3  addresses the community's needs.

          4                 Through inclusionary zoning and other

          5  mechanisms, we are leveraging the value of the

          6  rezoning to maximize the percentage of affordable

          7  units.  The imposition of a prevailing wage

          8  requirement reduce the effective, would reduce the

          9  effectiveness of our housing program.  Thank you and

         10  I will be happy to take your questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         12  We're being joined by Councilwoman Diana Reyna.  Do

         13  we have any questions. Councilwoman James.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Good morning.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Good

         16  morning.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  You indicated

         18  that basically it would reduce, you stated that it

         19  would reduce this, 605 would reduce the

         20  effectiveness of HPD, basically, alleging that there

         21  is pretty much a trade off between affordable

         22  housing and the ability to provide prevailing wage

         23  jobs.  Is that pretty much, is that one way to

         24  summarize your statement?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  No.
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          2  No, actually, what I would, what I would say is that

          3  in the Greenpoint/Williamsburg rezoning area, which

          4  is where this bill is applicable for, there are, the

          5  vast majority of the blocks that are incorporated in

          6  the rezoning, are in the upland area, which has very

          7  small lots and very small buildings.

          8                 In the cases of these small

          9  buildings, our concern is that the imposition of

         10  prevailing wages, which will, thus, increase

         11  operating costs, will have a dampening effect on

         12  development in those upland communities.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, I --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  It's

         15  only, it's only for those small buildings that are

         16  predominantly less than 50 unit buildings.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, it would

         18  only, what you're saying is that it would be

         19  unaffordable to apply the prevailing wage provision

         20  to those buildings which are small in nature?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:

         22  Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Small in

         24  nature.  And, you would support providing prevailing

         25  wage to the other buildings within the
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          2  Greenpoint/Williamsburg rezoning proposal?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  We

          4  actually believe that because of the size and the

          5  density of the buildings that are being proposed on

          6  the waterfront, that all of those buildings will be,

          7  in fact, paying prevailing wage, both for

          8  construction as well as for building operation.

          9  That is typically the way these buildings that are,

         10  that are, you know, several hundreds units and, you

         11  know, greater than 30, 20 to 30 stories would

         12  operate.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Has HPD done a

         14  cost benefit analysis to determine the amount, the

         15  impact of requiring prevailing wage on these smaller

         16  lots?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  We have

         18  looked at some scenarios on how this would impact

         19  smaller buildings and that's what I referred to in

         20  my testimony as that in a typical case, you would

         21  likely see a reduction in the return that a

         22  developer receives for that development.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  A reduction in

         24  the return for the developer.  So, the concern right

         25  now is the bottom line for the developer?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  No, the

          3  concern is for the feasibility of doing development

          4  and, therefore, the feasibility of getting

          5  affordable housing as a part of that development.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, are you

          7  familiar with a report that was done by Pratt?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I am.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And do you

         10  take issue with the findings of Pratt, which

         11  basically indicate that, in fact, the developer

         12  profit would be about one- half of one percent?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:

         14  Actually, in the scenarios that we ran, which were

         15  on smaller buildings in the upland areas, our

         16  numbers showed a significantly higher decrease in

         17  return.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, what was

         19  the difference between your analysis and the

         20  analysis that Pratt conducted?  I mean, you've come

         21  to two different conclusions and they're, they're

         22  vastly different.  So, have you, do you take issue

         23  with their analysis or what factors did you take

         24  into consideration that Pratt did not, or vice

         25  versa?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I am

          3  sure that the majority of the difference between

          4  those two analyses comes down to assumptions around

          5  land costs, construction costs that affect the

          6  overall development of the buildings.  We don't take

          7  issue to the assumption that Pratt made in their

          8  report that, on average, prevailing wage job would

          9  see a 30 percent increase in operating expenses.  We

         10  think that is roughly, you know, a good

         11  approximation for what that would be on an

         12  individual building.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And I --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  But,

         15  there are other factors that go into that analysis,

         16  like land costs and construction costs.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And are you

         18  aware that over 80 percent of the residential

         19  building service workers in New York City currently

         20  receive the 421- a tax abatement?  Are you aware of

         21  that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I

         23  wasn't aware of that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, and if,

         25  in fact, that's a true statement, wouldn't that

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  demonstrate that there is, that some buildings can

          3  afford to provide prevailing wages?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Well,

          5  but, again, most of the buildings that you're

          6  talking about are buildings that receive 421- a tax

          7  benefits that are large scale buildings in, mostly,

          8  I'm sure, in the Borough of Manhattan and those are

          9  the kinds of buildings that are going to be

         10  developed on waterfront in Greenpoint/Williamsburg.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, 80 percent

         12  of these buildings that offer 421- a tax credits

         13  are, based upon what you just said, are in Manhattan

         14  and are large scale buildings and none of them

         15  represent smaller scale buildings where you say it

         16  would be cost prohibited?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  No,

         18  that's not, I don't think that is what we're trying

         19  to say here.  What we're trying to say is that this

         20  may be the case on basically large scale.  Our

         21  concern is that, and as has been the concern of the

         22  Council, we're looking for an affordability

         23  component --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  -- In
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          2  the Greenpoint/Williamsburg area.  We feel that this

          3  would compromise that on the smaller buildings.  We

          4  are not familiar with the 80 percent statistic you

          5  mentioned, but certainly, I think it is acknowledged

          6  by probably everyone in this room, that prevailing

          7  wage is used and the bulk of 421- a, which, as my

          8  colleague says, has been, to some extent, dominated

          9  Manhattan in very large, very high density projects.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  But I guess

         11  I'm taking issue with the compromise and I just

         12  think it's really a false dichotomy and I think that

         13  we can provide good paying jobs and affordable

         14  housing and there doesn't necessarily have to be a

         15  trade off.  I think the cost of land acquisition in

         16  Manhattan is different from that of Brooklyn,

         17  particularly in Greenpoint/Williamsburg, and that

         18  the cost in Brooklyn would be much less than

         19  Manhattan and to compare Greenpoint/Williamsburg to

         20  Manhattan is a faulty comparison.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I think

         22  that, I mean, I think our analysis is, you know, is

         23  pretty clear and that, in particular in the

         24  Greenpoint/Williamsburg neighborhood, which is

         25  something that we've been working very closely with
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          2  the Council on in addressing the affordable housing

          3  concerns.  I think that we would all agree that

          4  that's a neighborhood that is seeing rapidly

          5  escalating land values, as well as construction

          6  costs.  So, I think while certainly I wouldn't

          7  compare those to Midtown Manhattan, they are

          8  certainly escalating and are rapidly escalating and,

          9  therefore, it poses a concern to us.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Madam Chair, I

         11  don't want to dominate the discussion.  I understand

         12  my colleagues have other questions and I reserve the

         13  right to ask other questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15  We've also been joined by Council Member Leroy

         16  Comrie.  Councilwoman Brewer, you have a question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         18  Thank HPD for all the work that you're doing under

         19  the current leadership.  My question is then, if you

         20  have buildings that are 50 units or more, do you

         21  support this bill being enacted for the buildings

         22  that are 50 units or more?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  We,

         24  we are concerned about a legislative remedy here or

         25  statutory determination.  We think that generally
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          2  this is something that should be negotiated.  We

          3  think as a matter of practicality, it is, to some

          4  extent, though mood is perhaps the wrong word, I

          5  think there's been tremendous progress, through I

          6  certainly cannot speak, nor would, put out as though

          7  speaking for the unions or the developers here.

          8  But, for the most part, there has been agreement to

          9  use this in the past and continue to use it in the

         10  future.  We think, generally, a statutory solution

         11  is one that we're occasionally weary of, and

         12  specifically in terms of producing an affordable

         13  component and continuing to produce housing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So, it's not

         15  so much the size, it's the general demeanor of the

         16  issue that you're opposed to.  In other words, you

         17  wouldn't support the bill if it was 50 units or

         18  more?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  At

         20  this point, that's correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  We --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  All right.

         24  The other question I have is, in terms of your way

         25  in which the program is monitored, I know you felt
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          2  that HPD would do that, but I know that you already

          3  do other kinds of monitoring in terms of the 421

          4  program and wouldn't it just be a situation in which

          5  materials could be submitted to be assured that

          6  there is a requirement and that there is compliance?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Well, I

          8  think, I mean, our concern is that what this bill

          9  would require us to answer and respond to all of

         10  the, all of the requests that came in about

         11  employees that did not receive prevailing wage, and

         12  that would require us to set up an administrative

         13  process to deal with that, which is outside of the

         14  typical process that we use to deal with the

         15  administration of 421- a tax benefits.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But I

         17  remember, just as an example, when the Koch

         18  Administration, there was the concern regarding, I

         19  think it was AT&T or Sony or Verizon, I can't

         20  remember, when the workers weren't actually working

         21  there.  But, under those circumstances, this is more

         22  on the commercial front, a City agency had to be

         23  sure that those workers were there.  I assume they

         24  had to get W- 2 forms or whatever was appropriate

         25  and it's the same concept.  There's a process, you
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          2  know what you need and if it's not there, then you

          3  would, you know, figure out what the appropriate

          4  remedy was.  I'm just saying, I don't think that's

          5  such a hard administrative burden.  Maybe I'm wrong.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Well,

          7  I'm not familiar with the case that you're stating,

          8  but what I will say-

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Joe is.  Go

         10  ahead.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  What I

         12  will say is that that's not something that we do now

         13  and that means that we would have to put that

         14  infrastructure in place to be able to respond and

         15  administer that portion of the --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  I

         17  mean, I disagree with you.  I think that this would

         18  not be difficult to enforce and I think that, at the

         19  very least, a compromise might be 50 units or more.

         20  Thank you very much Madam Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         22  Member Comrie.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you

         24  Madam Chair. What is, when you're talking about

         25  upland housing development, can you explain that?
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          2  You refer to that in your text a couple of times.

          3  What's a typical upland housing development project?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Sure,

          5  specifically in the Greenpoint/Williamsburg rezoning

          6  area, it incorporates both waterfront properties, as

          7  well as properties that are in what is referred to

          8  as the upland area, which is the existing

          9  residential and mixed use neighborhood in Greenpoint

         10  and Williamsburg.  So, when referring to that, I'm

         11  referring to the smaller sized development parcels

         12  that exist in that neighborhood today.  It's an

         13  existing residential and mixed used commercial

         14  neighborhood today.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Has HPD put

         16  what the cost per project would be, estimates,

         17  together for this area?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Yes, we

         19  have.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you're

         21  saying that these costs would be equal to building

         22  in Manhattan at this point?  Is that what you

         23  inferred?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  No, no,

         25  no that's not what I inferred.  What I said was, is
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          2  that in looking at the cost to develop in the upland

          3  areas, given the land prices that we're seeing,

          4  given construction costs that we're seeing, that we

          5  are concerned about the impact of increased

          6  operating expenses on the viability of those smaller

          7  scale developments in the upland area.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And based on

          9  the operating expenses is how you believe that 421-

         10  a would be helpful or not, and if the operating

         11  expenses or construction expenses are at, at what

         12  point does it help for 421- a in, to be in if the

         13  operating expenses and construction expenses are

         14  that you call prohibitive? Do you have a break

         15  point?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I'm not

         17  sure I exactly understand the question.  But, the,

         18  but, when we, the 421- a benefit is obviously

         19  extremely helpful to development across the City and

         20  we believe it will be extremely helpful to

         21  development in this community as well.  What --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, but

         23  you seem --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  -- We

         25  analyzed was-
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  -- To

          3  indicate that the 421- a would make it, what? Eight

          4  points or what?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Yeah,

          6  what we analyzed in that, Councilman, is we analyzed

          7  the difference between a property that was developed

          8  with 421- a benefits, but did not have a prevailing

          9  wage requirement and a building that developed with,

         10  same 421- a benefits, but had a prevailing wage

         11  requirement.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  So,

         13  you're trying to estimate what an acceptable rate of

         14  return should be for a building to be sustainable?

         15  That's what I'm trying to figure out.  Or, an

         16  estimate, an acceptable profit level would be for a

         17  building to be sustainable?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  We're

         19  just using, sort of, industry standards that are

         20  used to gauge the feasibility of a particular

         21  development, and looking at what the impact of

         22  different rises and costs would do to the

         23  feasibility of particular projects.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  I'm

         25  just trying -- so you haven't really gotten to what
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          2  the specific cost per project would be for that area

          3  because you don't know what the final land costs

          4  would be for some?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I mean,

          6  that's right.  I mean, we looked at several typical

          7  development scenarios, but, obviously, we can't

          8  predict exactly what costs are going to be at a

          9  given time that the development occurs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  But, you feel

         11  that in order for this program to be effective,

         12  you'd have to build to the highest, to more of

         13  Manhattan, to higher density sites, or, I'm sorry, I

         14  said that wrong, you'd have, they would have to

         15  build at higher density to make it more feasible for

         16  this area?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I, no,

         18  I think, no, I wasn't recommending that.  I think

         19  what I was trying to suggest is that there is a

         20  differentiation between the impact that a rise in

         21  operating cost has on a small property versus the

         22  rise in, what the rise in operating costs would have

         23  on a very high density development.  That was the

         24  only connection that I was trying to make.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  All
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          2  right, so, and, Commissioner Rosenberg, you said

          3  also that you don't like the bill regardless of what

          4  level we're talking about, one way or the other,

          5  because you'd rather negotiate it per each

          6  negotiated deal, as opposed to having it legislated?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  Well,

          8  we just think that, generally, in the history of

          9  developments of these nature, there has been use of

         10  prevailing wage.  I was just basically raising a

         11  cautionary note as to whether a legislative remedy

         12  here is the appropriate one to pursue since everyone

         13  kind of, does have the same interest here, namely

         14  development of housing and also protecting workers.

         15  So, that was just the point I was trying to explain.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  Do you

         17  have a --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         19  Member Reyna.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  -- Baseline

         21   --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, I'm

         23  sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I'm sorry, do

         25  you have a baseline on what this can be done under
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          2  affordable housing, have you worked up numbers on

          3  that to include 421- a to make it affordable housing

          4  and prevailing wage?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  We're

          6  working on an overall affordable housing strategy

          7  very closely with the Council right now, as it

          8  relates to this Greenpoint and Williamsburg rezoning

          9  area.  So, that's an on- going conversation that,

         10  that is still in, in discussion.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, all

         12  right.  I don't have any other questions right now

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         15  Member Reyna.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you

         17  Madam Chair.  Commissioners, I wanted to just ask,

         18  go back a minute, because Council Member Brewer, I

         19  believe, was asking questions pertaining to the

         20  number of units, and I think in trying to clarify, I

         21  got more confused.  Did I hear correctly in saying

         22  that you're not comfortable with the fact that a

         23  process that normally is negotiated outside of the

         24  legislative process, is going to just compromise

         25  what normally takes place once, you know,
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          2  development is completed, but that if units were to

          3  be developed in a building where it's more than 50

          4  units, then you could see this work?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  50

          6  units is not a magic threshold, it's an estimate of

          7  what we think might work or might not.  I mean, the

          8  main concerns is, as you certainly know representing

          9  a large portion of this district, is affordability.

         10  The opposition, therefore, is based on our concern

         11  that requiring this to be part of the obtaining 421-

         12  a benefits in Greenpoint/Williamsburg area as being

         13  proposed for rezoning could have a deleterious

         14  effect on affordability, which has certainly been

         15  one of our major priorities and I know one of yours

         16  as well.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  In trying to

         18  understand this, because I've received numbers

         19  concerning this bill, as well as combining the

         20  economics with the attempt to create affordable

         21  housing and Pratt Institute documented that the

         22  numbers do work out with a margin of profit.

         23                 Have you, as an agency, or has

         24  another agency within the Administration, done the

         25  calculations as to whether or not this would work or

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  not work?  I'm confused as to what exactly is it

          3  that works, whether it's statutorily or not in a

          4  legislative process, you know, taking away

          5  contracting abilities, you know, let's suppose this

          6  is not the fashion in which the prevailing wage is

          7  acquired.  Let's say the affordable housing is built

          8  and the market rate is built and we get prevailing

          9  wage, at the end of the day, everything was

         10  accomplished.  So, obviously, the numbers do work in

         11  that scenario without legislation having passed.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I guess

         13  to try and answer your question, what I would say is

         14  that yes, we have done analysis.  We focused our

         15  analysis exclusively on developments in the upland

         16  areas and I'll reiterate our concern, which is that

         17  for small developments, that the imposition of this

         18  prevailing wage requirement has the potential to be

         19  a prohibitive cost, have a prohibitive cost impact

         20  on development at smaller sizes.

         21                 That's, that's where our concern

         22  rests and we believe that, as my colleagues said,

         23  that there is, that there are, there is a precedent

         24  for discussions with the unions and developers about

         25  these kinds of issues that we think is a better path
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          2  to ensuring that we get a deal that allows us to

          3  protect both the development of affordable housing

          4  and jobs for workers.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Right now, I

          6  believe, we haven't reached the potential of

          7  satisfaction as far as the affordable housing piece

          8  is concerned and we're still continuing to,

          9  hopefully, have those discussions.  We've yet to

         10  begin those discussions.  But, in looking forward to

         11  those discussions, I'm trying to get feedback from

         12  you if those calculations that you have already done

         13  so, can be shared with us to understand what your

         14  positions are, you know, do those numbers work, with

         15  what percentage of affordable housing are you

         16  looking at those numbers?  Aside from the

         17  legislation, I understand, and clarify if you will,

         18  that there is an ability to get the prevailing wage

         19  without legislation, nonetheless.  You just want to

         20  be able to do it development by development.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  Where

         22  it's feasible, certainly, development by

         23  development, where in our view and in the views of

         24  perhaps the Council and developers and community

         25  residents as well, that we're not sacrificing one
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          2  very important priority for what is perhaps now

          3  being viewed as another one.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And I

          5  appreciate the fact that you're holding grounds on

          6  the affordable housing priority. But, I don't know

          7  what numbers you've used in order to predict, you

          8  know this whole rezoning and the development of this

          9  rezoning is based on assumptions, the fact that we

         10  may see 10,000 units of housing being built, the

         11  fact that we may see affordable housing, but we

         12  don't know how much yet, the fact that we may see

         13  prevailing wage, but we don't know yet what that

         14  will look like. So, at the end of the day, I'm

         15  trying to figure out how closer to a real picture

         16  can we start discussing what is likely to happen

         17  based on economics.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  We

         19  would be happy to, to share the specific analysis we

         20  did around Intro. 605.  We have shared the broader

         21  analysis that we have done around the rezoning with

         22  Council staff.  We would be happy to, to have more

         23  discussions about that and really sit down and talk

         24  about the assumptions that we have.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I just want to
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          2  share, you know, this is the first time I discussed

          3  in open forum the interest in discussing the

          4  prevailing wage issue, because, at the moment, what

          5  we had in front of us was a zoning matter.  So, I

          6  was trying to maintain focus on the zoning

          7  particulars.  When I raised at the table as far

          8  discussions taking place with the Administration as

          9  far as local hiring, prevailing wage, you know,

         10  business concern, making sure that there's an

         11  economic development growth within the businesses in

         12  the area, all discussions stalled.  So, I want to be

         13  able to have these productive discussions from here

         14  on until the day we vote this up or down.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  Okay,

         16  certainly we'll, we can discuss these items with

         17  you.  You mentioned stalling, I don't know what

         18  you're referring to.  There has been discussions on

         19  the larger issue of rezoning.  We're here to talk

         20  about 605 and our concerns on the bill.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And those are

         22  the discussions on prevailing wage.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:

         24  Right, but you're interjecting some other issues, I

         25  think, that --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  No, it's all

          3  related, it's all related.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  Okay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, I'm

          7  going -- we've been joined, first of all, by Council

          8  Member Christine Quinn and I see Council Member

          9  James Oddo, is he back there?  I'm going to have

         10  Council Member Monserrate ask a question and then,

         11  this has kind of gotten out of control.  We were

         12  supposed to first hear 607 and we've gotten away

         13  from that.  So, Council Member's question will be

         14  the last.  I don't know if you can stay, Mr.

         15  Cestero, in case there are other questions that's,

         16  if you can, I would ask you to.  If not, that's

         17  fine.  But, then after Council Member's question, we

         18  will go back to hearing 607- A.  Council Member

         19  Monserrate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         21  Madam Chair again.  I have two very brief questions

         22  and I appreciate your indulgence once again.  In

         23  your testimony, you've outlined how the 421- a

         24  program has been very successful in generating

         25  affordable housing throughout the City by extending
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          2  benefits in exchange for affordable housing.  Do you

          3  have any data that you can present, specifically, as

          4  to how many affordable housing units have been

          5  created as a result of 421- a?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  I don't

          7  know the exact number off the top of my head, but it

          8  is several thousand units that has been, that have

          9  been created through the 421- a program.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Several

         11  thousand.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Several

         13  thousand.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Several

         15  thousand throughout the City.  When did the program

         16  begin?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  I

         18  should know the answer to this one.  I believe it

         19  was 19, I think it was the 1970's or so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Since the

         21   --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG:  It's

         23  been expanded and modified many, many different

         24  times, mostly by the state legislator and, to a

         25  certain extent, by the City Council as well.

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I would

          3  assume that, clearly, that that information and data

          4  would be important, because if you're going to make

          5  a statement that you're creating all this affordable

          6  housing as a result of this program, you should be

          7  able to give us specifics as to how many units

          8  you've created and then even go so far as to tell us

          9  what tiers they fall within.

         10                 I know that I speak for myself and

         11  many of my colleagues, we see many developments

         12  throughout the City and within my district and in

         13  other parts of this City, that are getting a benefit

         14  and just producing market rate housing, which

         15  doesn't seem to be resolving the issue of affordable

         16  housing or the issue of prevailing wages for

         17  workers.  To that extent, I just wanted to raise

         18  that subject.

         19                 In your testimony today and in

         20  response to my colleague's question, including

         21  Council Member Reyna, today, you expressed concerns

         22  about the bill and what the impact would be. But, I

         23  don't know if you have put forward a document that

         24  specifically tells us your concerns and their fiscal

         25  impact specifically to the industry or developers
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          2  and what losses might specifically there be for the

          3  City of New York.

          4                 I think it would be a better road map

          5  if HPD or the Administration, for that matter,

          6  presented to us real facts and data as they relate

          7  to the concerns.  If you're going to make an

          8  argument that this bill can have a detrimental

          9  impact on the creation of affordable housing, then I

         10  think that you should be forwarding to this body and

         11  specifically to this Committee and the Chairperson,

         12  specific hard numbers that we can read.  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CESTERO:  Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         17  We're now going to hear testimony on Intro. 607- A

         18  and I will be putting folks on a clock.  You'll have

         19  a three minute clock.  The first folks will be Frank

         20  Ricci and Mitchel Posilkin.  John Doyle, okay, good.

         21    Whoever wants to start.

         22                 MR. RICCI:  Thank you Madam Chair.

         23  My name is Frank Ricci.  I'm the Director of

         24  Government Affairs for the Rent Stabilization

         25  Association.  To my right is Mitch Posilkin, who's
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          2  our general counsel and to Mitch's right is John

          3  Doyle, who is Vice- President for Government Affairs

          4  at the Real Estate Board of New York, who's probably

          5  going to make a short statement after we're through.

          6                 I want to thank you Madam Chair for

          7  putting this bill on so quickly after it's

          8  introduced.  I know that that's always an issue here

          9  in the Council when people introduce bills, then try

         10  and get a Hearing on it.  But, I think the fact that

         11  you've put it on so quickly at the request of

         12  Council Member Martinez goes right to the heart of

         13  how important this bill is if everyone wants to

         14  solve the problem of lead poisoning in the City.

         15                 Local Law One's been in existence for

         16  approximately nine months now, in actual practice.

         17  It was passed by the Council well over a year ago,

         18  but it went into effect last August.  In just these

         19  first nine months, this, as well as a number of

         20  other problems with the bill in terms of its

         21  practical impact on owners and the residents in the

         22  buildings that they manage, have surfaced.

         23                 The, I was glad to hear HPD earlier

         24  testify that they're in support of the concept of

         25  allowing a J- 51 tax abatement exemption for a

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  vacant apartment.  Their interpretation of the law,

          3  which was different than ours.  We though that they

          4  could have done that administratively; they

          5  maintained they couldn't.  Be that as it may, the

          6  fact that we're all in favor of now extending these

          7  benefits to vacant apartments has a very serious

          8  practical impact on, on owners.

          9                 Because of a lot of the liability

         10  that's imposed by Local Law One, owners will not

         11  undertake a lead abatement project on an occupied

         12  apartment.  The best time to do it is when the

         13  apartment is vacant.  So, we support this bill.  We

         14  support the other parts of the bill that remove the

         15  45 day notice requirement, because, once again, all

         16  that does is serve to keep apartments vacant longer

         17  and not have people living in them.  So, to remove

         18  that completely is a concept that we complete

         19  support.

         20                 Then, as I understand the prior

         21  testimony and other discussions we've had with HPD,

         22  there's a serious disagreement as to what the cost

         23  should be that's allowed for the abatement due to

         24  the cost of abating an apartment, and I actually

         25  think that HPD has raised some legitimate concerns
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          2  about the cost.  But, those are concerns that are

          3  borne out of the fact that you're requiring

          4  certified workers to do this work and there are very

          5  few of them, and yes, as we pointed out when Local

          6  Law One went into effect, the broad- brush approach

          7  that Local Law One takes throughout the City, you

          8  are going to get a different cost for abating an

          9  apartment on Park Avenue than you will for abating

         10  an apartment in, in one of the boroughs, where you

         11  actually would probably need the abatement more than

         12  in that Park Avenue apartment.

         13                 So, I think they have a legitimate

         14  concern.  We are more than happy to sit down with

         15  the Administration and work that out and, you know,

         16  come up with some sort of cap or some sort range of

         17  prices that would be acceptable to them.

         18                 I just want to point out thing about

         19  their argument though, on, if you get, apply for a

         20  J- 51 abatement on a landmarked building, you do get

         21  full cost reimbursement for, they use the actual

         22  cost of the project.  So, they've carved out a

         23  special niche when it comes to landmarks and,

         24  obviously, we think they should be carving out a

         25  special niche when it comes to lead abatement.  So,
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          2  if Mr. Doyle wants to make a statement, now maybe.

          3                 MR. DOYLE:  Thank you for allowing me

          4  to join the panel at the last moment.  I, since I

          5  was here to testify on the other bill, I didn't want

          6  to miss the opportunity to express our formal

          7  support for this piece of legislation.  On a

          8  personal level, it's gratifying to see that it has

          9  been introduced, because I think that it makes up

         10  for a rather disappointing aspect of Local Law One,

         11  and that is Local Law One not marshalling City

         12  resources where it was most needed.  That's exactly

         13  what this bill does.  It's wonderful to see it being

         14  introduced and wonderful to see it being heard so

         15  quickly and I hope it is enacted just as quickly.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         18  Member Martinez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you

         20  Madam Chair. I just want to thank RSA.  Usually, we

         21  hear that we can't work together, but I found that

         22  not to be true.  I want to thank Frank and RSA and

         23  John for working with my office in ensuring that we

         24  put together a legislation, a responsible

         25  legislation that allowed responsible owners to do
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          2  the right thing and that's the intent of this bill.

          3                 Again, the one most important thing

          4  is how do we keep our children safe, and I think

          5  that this bill addresses that issue in terms of us

          6  taking a proactive approach in just removing lead

          7  from our building and I guess if we get the lead out

          8  of our buildings, we won't need legislation to have

          9  to deal with lead. So, I want to thank you and I

         10  want to thank you again Madam Chair, for bringing

         11  this bill out and start the dialogue as to how we

         12  keep our children safe in our homes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         14  Council Member. I would also like to thank John and

         15  Frank.  We went through a lot when we did the lead

         16  bill and I think there are some issues that we knew

         17  then that would come back to us and I don't want to

         18  say to haunt us, but that's kind of what's

         19  happening, issues that would have to be revisited

         20  and looked at and worked on.

         21                 So, I'm happy for all of those folks

         22  that are doing that and I think this is probably

         23  just the beginning because I'm hearing other kinds

         24  of things that are happening.  I asked a question

         25  before of HPD and didn't get an answer, but maybe
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          2  you folks have an answer.  Are owners' costs for

          3  lead abatement used as a factor to increase the rent

          4  or deregulate the apartment.

          5                 MR. RICCI:  The, the simple answer is

          6  there could be some components of lead abatement

          7  work that take place when an apartment's vacant that

          8  could factor into it, they call it 1/40th rent

          9  increase, but the abatement, per se, is not, not

         10  eligible for a 1/40th increase.  I think you heard

         11  Deputy Commissioner Rosenberg point out that under

         12  City regulations, if you apply for a J- 51

         13  abatement, you're not eligible to have any unit in

         14  that building decontrolled.  So, if you even went

         15  over the $2,000.00 threshold, it's still regulated.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         17  Council Member Reyna.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Just wanted to

         19  take the opportunity to commend this panel for

         20  thinking of a very important aspect of a matter in

         21  which will allow further lead free children in the

         22  City of New York, and Council Member Martinez for

         23  being the prime sponsor on this bill.

         24                 I wanted to also just ask and forgive

         25  me for not knowing the answer to this question.  Do
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          2  you, any of you, represent one- and two- family

          3  homes? Because I believe that you already do

          4  represent three- family home property owners, and I

          5  ask because in my Queens portion of the district,

          6  one of the major concerns are seniors who are

          7  unable, who live on pensions, who live on Social

          8  Security, to be able to comply with this law and not

          9  being able to benefit from any programs.

         10                 We had HPD come in and they advised

         11  them as to what other programs there were, aside

         12  from J- 51.  But, now that J- 51 is going to be

         13  applicable, do you know if there's an intent or a

         14  willingness or a request from one- and two- family

         15  property owners to want the same access?  I know

         16  that the bill does not apply for one- and two-

         17  family homes.

         18                 MR. RICCI:  Insofar as our membership

         19  goes, we have, you know, I'll say a few, compared to

         20  the 25,000 members we have, very few one- and two-

         21  family homes.  But, we don't preclude people who own

         22  one- and two- family homes from joining our

         23  organization, but there's really very few of them.

         24  So, most of our efforts are targeted to three units

         25  or more, which is the City definition of a multiple
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          2  dwelling.

          3                 I would say, at this point, probably

          4  HPD or the Department of Health is the best resource

          5  for those people to, where someone may have all the

          6  programs in one package that they could be

          7  presented, but this was, you know, not to say we

          8  told you so, but we said when the lead paint law was

          9  passed that this was going to be a tremendous

         10  burden, especially to the smaller building owners

         11  and we're hearing a lot of that anecdotally.

         12                 MR. DOYLE:  The Real Estate Board

         13  doesn't represent any one- or two- family homeowners

         14  either, but I would certainly be in favor of

         15  anything that could be crafted to eliminate the risk

         16  of lead paint poisoning.

         17                 I was honest when I said before I

         18  thought it was the failure of Local Law One.  To me,

         19  Local Law One was primarily an enforcement bill, it

         20  wasn't a proactive bill and the resources that were

         21  spent, are being spent on the enforcement of Local

         22  Law One, if diverted towards the removal of lead

         23  paint, we could have eradicated the danger of lead

         24  paint poisoning within our lifetime.  So, it's not

         25  the case, the law is the law.  It's not going to
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          2  have major changes to it, but it certainly should be

          3  supplemented in any way possible to help property

          4  owners, homeowners, remove or abate lead paint.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I appreciate

          6  your technical assistance here.  I commend you again

          7  gentlemen.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          9  Member Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I'd just like

         11  to follow- up on the last point that Mr. Doyle made.

         12    I was going to ask Mr. Ricci, this bill serves to

         13  address a flaw in Local Law One, are there any other

         14  legislative remedies out there that can make Local

         15  Law One better than it is now, short of repealing

         16  it?

         17                 MR. RICCI:  I think the jury is out.

         18  But, as I started out in the my statement, the law's

         19  been, you know, owners have lived with it for nine

         20  months now and there's a lot of issues that are

         21  surfacing as a result of the law that we think are

         22  problems not only for, and when I say owners,

         23  understand there's a large not for profit community

         24  out there that manages a lot of housing in this City

         25  and I think they've come forward to Council Members
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          2  and certainly to us, also voicing the same problems

          3  and concerns.

          4                 I know that in many, many, many

          5  owners who we represent, who are mid- size to larger

          6  scale managing agents, who are the people you really

          7  want in this business, who used to renovate a few

          8  hundred apartments per year, with tenants in place,

          9  have stopped that all together.  You're going to

         10  start seeing the impact of that.  These were in the

         11  neighborhoods that needed the renovation, where you

         12  had old walk up buildings. That's something that's

         13  completely ceased in many neighborhoods now.  I

         14  think you're going to start really seeing the impact

         15  of that in terms of a real deterioration of those

         16  buildings.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  And I think

         18  that that's a subject for a future Hearing.  I think

         19  it certainly should be that we should be, this

         20  Committee that passed Local Law One, should hold an

         21  Oversight Hearing a year later after this bill, you

         22  said it's nine months, essentially.

         23                 So, some time Madam Chair, perhaps

         24  after the summer when we come back in the early

         25  fall, we should see and we heard, as you said, we
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          2  heard a lot of testimony from affordable housing

          3  advocates talking about the chilling effect this

          4  bill might have on constructing affordable housing.

          5                 I think it's incumbent upon us to

          6  take a look back and see what the results are over

          7  the last year.  If there are any obvious remedies

          8  that you see, please feel free to share those ideas

          9  and I'd like to help you craft a bill to address

         10  them.  Thank you.

         11                 MR. DOYLE:  Council Member, if I may,

         12  I'd just like to raise something that we discussed

         13  during the course of the debates over Local Law One.

         14    It's easy to identify where the greatest risk of

         15  lead poisoning is, even during the Hearings and the

         16  heat of the moment, people kept referring to the

         17  lead belt. So, we know where those neighborhoods are

         18  and we also know that they are, many of the people

         19  who own property there, are not super wealthy

         20  landlords.  They're, they get by marginally.

         21                 We've also heard HPD testify today

         22  that there are very few contractors who are

         23  certified to do the work and that there's a concern

         24  on their part that either the City or, in fact, the

         25  property owner, is going to be gauged because they
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          2  either, they may not have the ability to go out and

          3  get competitive bids.

          4                 Council Member Reyna testified that

          5  we have a lot of one- and two- family homeowners who

          6  would like to do it.  But, it's not just the money,

          7  they lack the expertise and they lack the buying

          8  power.  So, to revive an idea that we've discussed

          9  before, why shouldn't the City, in essence, do a

         10  requirement contract, a requirement contract with

         11  contractors in terms of lead paint removal, for

         12  instance, the abatement that needs to be done, and

         13  you let it out and do it for 500,000 square feet and

         14  anybody in the City below a certain income level who

         15  owns property could qualify to tap into that, just

         16  like a City agency can to buy pencils or erasers for

         17  a City requirement contract. If we know that

         18  friction surfaces are the principal cause, in those

         19  neighborhoods in the lead belt, why don't we do a

         20  requirement contract for window replacement?

         21                 In essence, take advantage of the

         22  City's buying power to mass buy and mass purchase

         23  the services that are necessary to be able to do

         24  this work at the cheapest way possible, as quickly

         25  as possible.  That's what I meant when I said
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          2  earlier the failure of Local Law One is that it

          3  didn't direct the resources to eradicate the

          4  problem.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  You said you're

          6  reviving this idea.  When did you first bring it up

          7  and what was the response of the Administration at

          8  that time?

          9                 MR. DOYLE:  The sense that I got from

         10  folks was that they, that people were reluctant to

         11  target resources to the lead belt for fear that

         12  there would be equal protection issues at, in other

         13  neighborhoods that were not targeted.  I'm not a

         14  lawyer, certainly not a constitutional expert, but

         15  it's, but it seems to me if you know where the

         16  problem is, that's where you should be directing

         17  your resources.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Well, I'd like

         19  to sit down with you and pursue that and see if we

         20  can reach out to the Administration and craft a

         21  program that's not offensive in any way, but puts

         22  the resources where we are.

         23                 It's interesting, at one of the

         24  earlier Hearings, we asked some questions about the

         25  violations issue to date, and some maps were sent by
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          2  the Administration to the Chair and to myself in

          3  response to that question, and if you look at it,

          4  the problem is as defined and as clear today as it

          5  was during all the discussions and it's in that lead

          6  belt and that's where the resources should go.

          7  Thank you Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:   Thank you

          9  Council Member Oddo.  I think we all agree with you

         10  on that.  Do we have any more questions for the

         11  folks that are here?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Madam

         13  Chair, I just want to make one quick comment.

         14  Following --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, we have,

         16  okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Following

         18  what was mentioned, you know, in my district, which

         19  is a, part of the belt curve that was identified,

         20  you know, one of the motivating reasons why I

         21  decided to look at the issue of just getting the

         22  lead removed from those vacant apartments is because

         23  of the fact that, as mentioned earlier, there are a

         24  lot of landlords that are not rich landlords.  There

         25  are a lot of landlords that are good landlords.
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          2  There are a lot of landlords that are bad landlords.

          3                 In this case, in my district, I found

          4  particularly that I'm losing a lot of good

          5  landlords, and I think that one of the issues to

          6  address this is, let's just get rid of the lead,

          7  which is, I think, the objective that we all want to

          8  meet.  I want to again thank the RSA organization,

          9  the Rent Stabilized Association and yourself, Madam

         10  Chair, for understanding the need to just getting

         11  rid of the lead and preserving affordable housing in

         12  our districts.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Right, get

         14  the lead out is the message.  Okay.  I would just

         15  like to remind folks that we have two bills on for a

         16  Hearing today.  So, as much as I agree with

         17  everything that's -- no, don't leave, because we

         18  have, everything that's being said here, I would

         19  like to keep our comments on the Intro.  Council

         20  Member Yassky has joined us and he has a question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Yes, thank

         22  you Chair Provenzano.  I will be very brief.  I just

         23  want to thank you for holding this Hearing,

         24  particularly on Intro. 605, dealing with prevailing

         25  wage in the rezoning area in
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          2  Greenpoint/Williamsburg. As you know --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          4  Member Yassky, we're doing 607 right now.  We'll hit

          5  questions later, after this.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Would it be

          7  possible? Only because I have a commitment in my

          8  district.  Could I just make a very brief statement

          9  to you and then go?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you.

         12  I, as you know, the bulk of this rezoning area is in

         13  the 33rd District, which I represent.  I just want

         14  to be clear to the Committee, I believe strongly

         15  that one way or another, we should make sure that

         16  the buildings to be built in this rezoning pay

         17  prevailing wage to their building service employees.

         18                 In New York City, people are entitled

         19  to a wage that you can raise a family on if they're

         20  working and working hard.  These building service

         21  workers do that.  So, I know that there are talks

         22  with the industry about how to achieve that goal,

         23  and it is my strong, strong, strong desire that that

         24  goal is reached.

         25                 I also, as you know, Chair

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Provenzano, have introduced a bill that would make

          3  sure that tax benefits in this rezoning area go only

          4  to buildings where there's affordable housing.  So,

          5  as this legislation moves, if it moves to the

          6  Committee, I'm going to want to make sure that that

          7  issue is addressed as well.  I just want to make

          8  that clear to the Committee.  Thank you Chair

          9  Provenzano.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         11  Next, we have Patrick --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Madam Chair

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  --

         14  Siconolfi.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, what?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I would just

         18  like to add my name to Intro. 607 please.  607- A.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  607- A?  We

         20  would be happy for you to do that as well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I as well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And Council

         23  Member Diana Reyna and Councilwoman Melinda Katz

         24  and, you're on it, right? Okay.  Thank you all.

         25  It's really tough hearing two bills. Let's not do
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          2  this anymore.  Okay, Patrick Siconolfi, okay, and

          3  Robert Altman and Matthew Chachere, Chachere? Okay.

          4  The three of you come up and you decide among you

          5  who wants to go first.

          6                 MR. SICONOLFI:   Good morning.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  If you're

          8  off, you're on.

          9                 MR. SICONOLFI:  Okay.  I'm on now.

         10  Good morning Chairwoman Provenzano and Members of

         11  the Housing and Buildings Committee.  My name is

         12  Patrick Siconolfi.  I am Executive Director of CHIP,

         13  the Community Housing Improvement Program. CHIP is

         14  an education and advocacy group, whose members are

         15  small and medium sized owners of residential real

         16  estate.

         17                 CHIP supports Intro. 607- A, amending

         18  the Administrative Code, clarifying that certain

         19  lead paint, lead paint abatement work will qualify

         20  for J- 51 tax treatment. Specifically, this bill

         21  clarifies that lead abatement work would qualify for

         22  such treatment in an existing dwelling, regardless

         23  of whether it is occupied or vacant.  Additionally,

         24  it would extend J- 51 treatment to common areas of a

         25  building.  Further, we look forward to working with
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          2  HPD to make this program operate effectively.

          3                 Regarding the extension of

          4  eligibility to vacant apartments, this is completely

          5  consistent with the purposes of Local Law One.  The

          6  number of vacancies occurring annually is

          7  significant and the testing and remediation

          8  responsibilities of the law essentially always apply

          9  to vacancies and covered buildings.  To allow J- 51

         10  eligibility for work done to vacant apartments would

         11  advance the intent of the law and foster lead

         12  abatement.  It is consistent with other sections of

         13  the law, allowing such eligibility.

         14                 Specifically, the law already allows

         15  eligibility for occupied apartments.  An owner in

         16  need of J- 51 relief for an occupied apartment will

         17  be similarly in need of relief for a vacant one.

         18  Note that vacant apartments, in addition to having

         19  similar testing and abatement obligations and, thus,

         20  costs as an occupied one, must also face an

         21  additional period of no rental income as the Local

         22  Law One work occurs.  Accordingly, it is reasonable

         23  to argue that work in vacant apartments is at least

         24  as needing of eligibility as an occupied one.

         25                 Also, HPD has indicated that it
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          2  interprets Local Law One in strict terms as regards

          3  to J- 51 eligibility. Specifically, it is not

          4  allowing J- 51 treatment for work done in vacant

          5  apartments.  Accordingly, Intro. 607- A will clarify

          6  for all a consistent applicability of J- 51.

          7                 Regarding common areas, the bill

          8  establishes a similar consistency with the law's

          9  intent and other existing positions, provisions, to

         10  foster lead abatement.  Common areas of buildings

         11  are subject to similar testing and abatement

         12  obligations as occupied apartments.  The owner of a

         13  building needing J- 51 relief in an occupied

         14  apartment would similarly need relief for work

         15  occurring in common areas.  Logically, the

         16  obligations are the same, and the relief applied

         17  should be the same.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  He's not done.

         19    You have ten seconds.

         20                 MR. SICONOLFI:  Okay.  Next note, the

         21  lead law, by definition, tends to apply to, it

         22  targets older buildings.  These are buildings which

         23  are financially more vulnerable.  These are

         24  precisely the kinds of buildings that J- 51 was

         25  meant to help.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  If you can

          3  wrap it up.

          4                 MR. SICONOLFI:  Thank you for the

          5  opportunity to address you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you so

          7  much Mr. Siconolfi.  We have Robert Altman.

          8                 MR. ALTMAN:  Good morning.  Thank you

          9  for the opportunity to testify.  I represent the

         10  Queens and Bronx Building Association and the

         11  Building Industry Association of New York City.

         12                 Our statement actually addresses both

         13  bills here today.  But, I'm only going to, at this

         14  point in time, address Intro. Number 607, in keeping

         15  with the Chair's wishes.  Both Associations

         16  generally support Intro. 607.  Our membership is

         17  primarily devoted to the construction of new housing

         18  and, therefore, lead paint is not an issue our

         19  Association members often need to address.  However,

         20  to the extent that this legislation eases the

         21  expensive cost of lead paint remediation and helps

         22  decrease the cost of housing, our Association

         23  support it, as we generally support any legislation

         24  that reduces the expensive cost of housing in New

         25  York City.  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

          3  Altman.  We have Matthew Chachere.

          4                 MR. CHACHERE:  Thank you.  I was

          5  invited to speak here today on Intro. 607 and I have

          6  received some inquiries about this bill.  Over the

          7  last day, I've discussed this with some of my

          8  colleagues among the tenant community and I'll say,

          9  first of all, overall I think the bill has very good

         10  intentions and, from my view, any policy that

         11  encourages the permanent abatement of lead from our

         12  City's housing stock is something to be commended.

         13  However, I think the proposal does need a little bit

         14  more study and refinement, and I'd be happy to work

         15  with the Council on that.

         16                 Let me just say that my understanding

         17  of the focus of the J- 51 amendments in Local Law

         18  One of 2004 was to really focus on child- occupied

         19  dwelling units, to limit the fiscal impact on the

         20  City.  I agree that the concept of expanding it to

         21  cover vacant dwelling units, which are required

         22  under Local Law One to have some lead abatement is a

         23  good idea, as well as common areas.  I'm not

         24  entirely certain whether covering adult- occupied,

         25  non- child- occupied dwellings is really necessary.
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          2  Although I don't think anybody's going to do it

          3  anyway.  But, you know, it's just a question I

          4  raise.

          5                 I do find myself agreeing with Harold

          6  Shultz, which is probably something you've never

          7  seen here before, about the, the issue about the 100

          8  percent cost reimbursement.  I think there probably

          9  should be some refinement of this, to have some

         10  mechanism for HPD to have a role in controlling the

         11  prices.  I think this has benefit not only in the J-

         12  51 context, but just overall thinking about HPD's

         13  role in helping to set market prices probably will

         14  be helpful for controlling abatement costs in non J-

         15  51 programs as well.  So, I think that issue just

         16  should be looked at a little more carefully.

         17                 You know, when Local Law One of 2004

         18  was, was introduced and considered through, I think,

         19  eight or nine different Hearings, there was a lot of

         20  documentary evidence and analysis and I would just

         21  like to see a little more of that on these issues

         22  that I identified.  I mean, when I read the

         23  explanatory material, it says a lot about it's

         24  claimed by landlords that and it's claimed by this,

         25  but I haven't seen anything outside of anecdote and
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          2  that concerns me.

          3                 For example, I, we heard Mr. Ricci

          4  here a little while ago still saying that Local Law

          5  One, the problems with liability are tremendous and,

          6  you know what, that was an argument that was made

          7  last year and the year before.  I should point out

          8  that I represent tenants who intervened alongside

          9  the City Council in defending the current lead law

         10  and a lawsuit brought by Mr. Ricci, the RSA and CHIP

         11  here in the Appellate Division in January of this,

         12  I'm sorry, February of this year, in fact, declared,

         13  unambiguously, that the landlords' arguments that

         14  Local Law One --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Can you

         16  conclude?

         17                 MR. CHACHERE:  Yes, 2001, did not

         18  change liability at all, that those arguments were

         19  of no merit.  So, let me just mention one other

         20  thing quickly and then I'll, and then I'll stop.

         21  I'm also concerned about the uncertainty as to

         22  issues concerning MCI's that could arise, on major

         23  capital improvements, from abatements.  I mean, if I

         24  hear Dr. Shultz, Mr. Shultz explain that he's not

         25  sure about this issue, it is of concern.
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          2                 Mr. Rosenberg said, yes, they remain

          3  in rent stabilization for 12 years, which is good,

          4  but that doesn't answer the question about MCI's.

          5  So, I, again, and don't forget, of course, that when

          6  apartments are vacant, they automatically get a 20

          7  percent rent increase.  So, I just think these

          8  issues should be refined a little bit more.  I think

          9  the bill's intentions are good and I look forward to

         10  working with you on this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

         12  Chachere. Are there any questions from the Members

         13  of this panel?  Thank you very much.  We will now

         14  hear from Bernard Carr and Donald Halperin from the

         15  New York State Association for Affordable Housing.

         16  This is the last panel for 607, Intro. Number 607-

         17  A.

         18            MR. CARR:  And the last panel will be the

         19  shortest, because there's not much that we can add

         20  to what's already been said, but we do really want

         21  to be on record as very strongly supporting this

         22  bill.  It can cost upwards of tens of thousands of

         23  dollars to abate lead paint violations in

         24  apartments.  So, any assistance that property owners

         25  can get in doing that is very, very welcome, and the
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          2  opportunity to do this when the apartments are

          3  vacant, which makes it much easier and much less

          4  risky is also a very good thing.

          5                 The only thing I would add is that we

          6  hope that in terms of calculating the certified

          7  reasonable cost that the cost of the, the various

          8  studies and things that also have to be done, in

          9  addition to the cost of the abatement, be considered

         10  as part of the, of the J- 51 certified cost.  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you

         13  Bernie.  Donald. Thank you.  Thank you for being

         14  here.  I hope you're doing well. Now, we will shift

         15  focus from 607- A, this last panel concluded the

         16  Hearing on Intro. 607- A.  We will move now to 605-

         17  A, I apologize, for Intro. Number 605.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         19  Councilwoman Reyna.  Hector Figueroa, Christine

         20  Zygnerski and, this is a hard one, Shafeeq Asad.

         21  Shafeeq Asad, are you here?  Oh, okay.  If the three

         22  of you would come up to the mic please.  Whichever

         23  one of you wants to start first, please do.

         24                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Thank you, good

         25  morning distinguished Members of the City Council,
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          2  Chairwoman Provenzano. My name is Hector Figueroa.

          3  I'm the Secretary- Treasurer of Local 32BJ.  We have

          4  great interest on the issue of affordable housing,

          5  particularly when it comes down to working members,

          6  like ours.

          7                 We've witnessed in the City that over

          8  and over again a lot of high rises that are luxury

          9  residential buildings are being built and,

         10  unfortunately, not that many that working people can

         11  afford.

         12                 At the same time, our members are

         13  very concerned about the standards of building

         14  service workers and we would like to testify today

         15  to the effect that we urge the City Council Members

         16  to support Intro. 605.  We think that it's

         17  absolutely possible to reconcile two key goals of

         18  City government, which is to provide for good jobs

         19  for New Yorkers, as well as provide affordable

         20  housing.

         21                 I'm really glad to see many Members

         22  here, Leroy, Miguel, Diana, Council Member

         23  Provenzano, Letitia and we've been working with you

         24  over the years on issues affecting working people.

         25  So, we are really pleased and thankful to you for
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          2  the opportunity for us to be able to express our

          3  concerns and our desires with respect to this topic.

          4                 So, first, I'm going to proceed to

          5  read my testimony, make sure that nothing is left

          6  out.  Then, we're going to hear testimony from some

          7  of our members and we hope that at the end of our

          8  presentation, we will be able to answer your

          9  questions and provide you with additional

         10  information if you so need.

         11                 So, again, on behalf of our 75,000

         12  members, I would like the Members of the City

         13  Council for this opportunity, particularly the

         14  Members of this Committee, to testify today in

         15  support of Intro. 605.  I would also like to thank

         16  the Speaker and the Mayor for the interest they have

         17  shown in making sure that building service workers

         18  in Greenpoint/Williamsburg are being paid prevailing

         19  wage.  Even though we may have perhaps some

         20  disagreements on how to get that done, we really

         21  thank them for their interest in this matter.

         22                 The proposed rezoning of

         23  Greenpoint/Williamsburg provides us with a rare

         24  opportunity to create as many as 10,000 units of

         25  housing, including affordable units, and create as
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          2  many as 500 new permanent jobs in the City of New

          3  York.  Because the City is being asked to make a

          4  substantial public investment in this development,

          5  we believe it must be done in a responsible manner

          6  so all New Yorkers can share on its benefits.

          7                 Intro. 605 is an essential part of

          8  making this rezoning fair, equitable and

          9  responsible.  Developers in Greenpoint/Williamsburg

         10  will receive over $200 million in tax breaks through

         11  the 421- a tax abatement.  Intro. 605 would require

         12  recipients of this tax break to pay the building

         13  service works the prevailing wage in the City of New

         14  York.

         15                 Local 32BJ represents more than 80

         16  percent of residential building service workers in

         17  New York City.  Not only in Manhattan, which you're

         18  probably most familiar with our members in the Upper

         19  East Side, the Upper West Side, here and in the

         20  Lower East Side, but we also represent building

         21  service workers in Queens, Brooklyn and Staten

         22  Island and, of course, in the Bronx, and they

         23  receive good wages and benefits.

         24                 The projected 500 building service

         25  workers should receive quality wages and benefits
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          2  that are on par with the vast majority of building

          3  service workers throughout New York City. We are

          4  concerned that without adequate protections in

          5  place, many of these workers will be paid

          6  substandard wages and benefits. Buildings out on the

          7  Queens waterfront in Long Island City, for example,

          8  now operate non- union, threatening to undermine

          9  prevailing wage and benefit standards like the ones

         10  our members have achieved.  Without proactive City

         11  Council action, this trend will continue along the

         12  Brooklyn waterfront and negatively impact working

         13  families across the City.

         14                 I may say that our work with the City

         15  Council, it's not just a Queens waterfront.  We have

         16  experience in the past and we have been with you in

         17  different situations, buildings in Brooklyn,

         18  buildings in Downtown New York that receive in one

         19  form or another subsidies and the union members

         20  always find it really hard if you left, leave it to

         21  the market on its devices, the tendency of

         22  developers would be not to pay prevailing to make an

         23  extra margin of profit.

         24                 Now, this is not just a local issue.

         25  Local 32BJ depends on our high density in the City
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          2  to negotiate good contracts for our members.  If

          3  such a large project were to have substandard wages

          4  and benefits, it would put downward pressure on the

          5  wages and benefits of all of our members.  All

          6  75,000 members of Local 32BJ depend on City Council,

          7  on the City Council to protect the decent standards

          8  that they have fought hard for.  The 421- a tax

          9  abatement was enacted to protect the City's existing

         10  tax base.  But, if recipients of this tax break pay

         11  substandard wages and benefits, they will be

         12  undermining the City's existing tax base.

         13                 Finally, earlier today, and in

         14  conversations before with several Council Members,

         15  some concerns have been raised, which I would like

         16  to address.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Could I ask

         18  you to sum up please.

         19                 MR. FIGUEROA:  One more page.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You've far

         21  exceeded your three minutes.

         22                 MR. FIGUEROA:  So, let me just

         23  address some very specific concerns that the Council

         24  Members have expressed about this development.

         25  Number one, it has been said that this project, the
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          2  concern is there that it may affect affordable

          3  housing.  Later here, we're going to hear from Brad

          4  Lander (phonetic), who is from the Pratt Center and

          5  they have done a research and a study that, you

          6  know, demonstrates that this, Intro. 605, will knock

          7  it out the kind of profit margins that make it

          8  possible for developers to express interest in

          9  affordable housing.  We don't think this is a real

         10  issue.

         11                 Number two, Intro. 605 is not

         12  difficult to enforce.  HPD already enforces

         13  prevailing wage.  The City has mechanisms for

         14  enforcing prevailing wage.  It should be very easy

         15  to find ways of enforcing prevailing wage, by tying

         16  the enforcement of 605 to the existing mechanisms.

         17                 Number three, we have also hear that,

         18  you know, there needs to be protection of buildings

         19  that are of a particular size.  We agree with the

         20  City Council Members and, by the way, with the

         21  Administration, when they say that buildings up to a

         22  certain size should be required under 605 or that

         23  smaller buildings should not.  We propose that we

         24  limit the size to buildings of 50 units or more and

         25  those would be the buildings that 605 should
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          2  address.  This is a similar requirement we have

          3  under Displaced Worker Law that was passed by this

          4  Council and that would protect small developers.

          5                 Finally, I'd just like to say that we

          6  think this building legislation would not affect the

          7  bottom line of building owners and we'd be happy to

          8  answer all of your questions.  I hope that you will

          9  listening attentively to Brad when he gives his

         10  report.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay,

         12  whichever one of your wants to be next.  I must

         13  insist that you stay within the three minutes or I

         14  will have to cut you off.

         15                 MS. ZYGNERSKI:  It's still morning.

         16  Good morning. I want to thank Chairwoman Provenzano

         17  and the Members of the Housing and Building

         18  Committee for letting me speak today.  My name is

         19  Christine Zygnerski and I have been in the Local

         20  32BJ member for 26 years and a resident of

         21  Greenpoint for over 60 years.  I live on the

         22  historic preservation block, Kent Street. My house

         23  is over 100 years old.  My mother is also a retired

         24  member of Local 32BJ.  She lives with, in the same

         25  house with me.
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          2                 Many members of Local 32BJ live in

          3  Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  I see them on the

          4  subway when we go to work.  In fact, there are over

          5  1,500 members who live in these two neighborhoods.

          6  Before I was a member of Local 32BJ, I had two jobs.

          7    I had two non- union jobs.  The first job I had in

          8  the day, I worked in an office doing clerical work

          9  and in the evening I worked in a building doing

         10  cleaning.

         11                 Now, I, now I work, now I have a

         12  union job and I make, and I work and I have good

         13  health care and pension and I make a very good wage.

         14    Now I don't have to work two jobs.  I have time to

         15  take care of my mother and my cats and I have, and I

         16  have time to go to church and be active in my

         17  community.  I attend St. Anthony and St. Alphonsus

         18  Church in the landmark church on Manhattan Avenue.

         19                 I know the City's plan for the

         20  waterfront is going to create 10,000 units of

         21  housing and 500 building jobs, service jobs.  I know

         22  how important it is to be paid good wages and

         23  benefits.  For a project in my neighborhood, we need

         24  to make sure the building service workers get paid

         25  the same wages and benefits I do.  I and my brothers
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          2  and sisters urge you to join us in making sure that

          3  Intro. 605 becomes a reality.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          5  Mr. Asad.

          6                 MR. ASAD:  Good morning.  My name is

          7  Shafeeq Asad and I'm a member of SEIU Local 32BJ.

          8  First, I would like to thank Chairwoman Provenzano

          9  and the Members of this Committee for the

         10  opportunity to testify today.  I'm a lifelong New

         11  Yorker.  I was born in Presbyterian Hospital in

         12  Harlem and I moved to Greenpoint in 1984.  For 21

         13  years, I've enjoyed the neighborhood, living in a

         14  three- family apartment building.  My daughter lives

         15  on South 10th Street in Berry (phonetic), that's in

         16  Williamsburg.

         17                 As you can see, we are neighborhood

         18  people.  We have lived there a long time and proud

         19  of our community.  It's a good, quiet neighborhood,

         20  where everyone, all ethnicities, mostly all working

         21  families, get along.  Last summer, I started

         22  coaching a basketball team in Greenpoint, it's

         23  called the Brooklyn Ballers.  We play, our home team

         24  is, in, on Franklin Avenue, which is called Barge

         25  Park (phonetic) now.  That's where they're talking
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          2  about building at.  I'm happy to do this for the

          3  neighborhood.

          4                 I'm here today because I care about

          5  the neighborhood.  We have to make sure, in the

          6  process, we don't lower the standards for

          7  Greenpoint.  We need to make sure the development is

          8  done responsibly and benefits everyone in the

          9  community.  Intro. 605, introduced by Council Member

         10  Jackson is important legislation, because it will

         11  create wage and benefit standards for hundreds of

         12  new building service jobs in this area. This is good

         13  for the people who get the job and it's good for the

         14  people who live in the buildings.

         15                 I've been a member of SEIU Local 32BJ

         16  for six and a half years and the wages and benefits

         17  I receive have helped me provide a good life to my

         18  family and have enabled me to make, enabled me to

         19  give back to the community, excuse me.  Local 32BJ

         20  members take pride in their work and take care of

         21  the buildings they work in.  Sometimes people think

         22  they can save money in the short run by paying

         23  substandard wages and benefits, but this leads to

         24  higher turnover in the buildings and less security

         25  and quality for tenants, which ultimately costs
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          2  money in the long run.  Good times, good jobs, for,

          3  good jobs are for good workers, their families and

          4  the communities.  I encourage this Committee and the

          5  City Council to pass Intro. 605.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          7  We've been joined by Council Member Lew Fidler.  Do

          8  we have any questions? Diana Reyna.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Mr. Figueroa,

         10  how are you? I just wanted to ask you, do you, by

         11  any chance, foresee any discussions concerning the

         12  prevailing wage item before us with the

         13  Administration?

         14                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Well, we will be

         15  talking to the Councilman, we've been talking to

         16  Council Members.  We would also like to talk to the

         17  Administration and --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, the

         19  Administration has not discussed this with you?

         20                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Not with me

         21  personally.  But, I know that our staff is reaching

         22  out to all City government to make sure --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I'm referring

         24  to just the Mayor's Administration.

         25                 MR. FIGUEROA:  I'm not aware of that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  They are or

          3  they're not?

          4                 MR. FIGUEROA:  I don't know.  Oh, we

          5  have?  Okay. Yeah, Arie (phonetic) is informing that

          6  yes, he has been in conversations with the staff and

          7  that the conversations have been productive thus

          8  far.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  They have been

         10  productive.

         11                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Yes, they have been.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I'm glad they

         13  have been productive for you.  I have not been able

         14  to get the item on the table as far as prevailing

         15  wages are concerned, not just for building workers

         16  proposed on the waterfront, but also for the trade

         17  jobs that are going to exist out of this proposed

         18  development.

         19                 It's important that we see local

         20  hiring, as I've expressed to 32BJ representatives.

         21  It's important that we see the growth in our own

         22  community, not just within the union.  I respect the

         23  union wholeheartedly.  I admire your efforts and

         24  what you have accomplished throughout the years.

         25  You have been great supporters since day one and I
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          2  want to return that.  But, in doing so, I have to

          3  also remember that I have my own union and that's

          4  Community Board District One, as well as all the

          5  residents of the 34th Councilmanic District.  In

          6  those discussions, has the local hiring been raised?

          7                 MR. FIGUEROA:  I don't know if in

          8  those discussions the local hiring has been raised.

          9  But, I can tell you that in this public forum, you

         10  can get a commitment from the union that as long as

         11  the legal hurdles of such a requirement are figured

         12  out, we are all for promoting, encouraging the

         13  developers to employ the people from the local

         14  community.

         15                 As a matter of fact, in one of our

         16  trainings, with our member political organizers, the

         17  members themselves express that it would be a good

         18  idea and the brother here, it was one of those who

         19  was present at our meetings, to be able to get the

         20  developers to agree with the community, with the

         21  City, that they will give preferential hiring to

         22  people from the community.

         23                 So, we have no problem with that

         24  idea.  We're actually making this statement here

         25  publicly that we support the idea.  It's a little
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          2  tricky sometimes to make this requirements under the

          3  law, but we leave that to the lawyers.  The

          4  principal, we support it, and we welcome you and we

          5  appreciate you expressing that concern.  We are for

          6  getting jobs where the jobs are needed the most.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I just want

          8  to, for the record, state that the average median

          9  income in our neighborhood is $23,000.00.  The good

         10  majority are earning less than $18,000.00 a year.

         11  If you are lucky to have a union job, you're able to

         12  live in the community and I don't, I cannot

         13  guarantee for how long, because this development can

         14  compromise the existing families and their

         15  livelihoods.

         16                 So, it is important that we share the

         17  wealth across the board.  I have to make sure that

         18  that is the priority at the table when discussions

         19  continue with the Administration. I appreciate the

         20  efforts that you have endured in trying to highlight

         21  how prevailing wage is part of those discussions.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Exactly, and we

         24  embrace the community's concerns too.  If I may say,

         25  just want to add something, which I don't know if
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          2  all the Council Members understand this, the

          3  building service workers who work in the high- rises

          4  in the Upper East Side or the Upper West Side or

          5  here in the commercial to residential conversations

          6  in Downtown, along the waterfront, they come from

          7  all these neighborhoods.  They come from the

          8  neighborhoods where working people in New York live

          9  and protecting their standards is another way of

         10  protecting the standards in our neighborhoods.  We

         11  certainly embrace your idea and we'll communicate

         12  that to the Administration.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you

         14  Hector and we also have to remember that those are

         15  the same neighborhoods that are being displaced as

         16  well and gentrified.

         17                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Exactly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  Councilwoman James.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Mr. Figueroa,

         21  I'm sort of confused.  I'm really, as I read the

         22  testimony of HPD and as I read your testimony, I

         23  think there is some meeting of the minds, and

         24  correct me if I'm wrong.

         25                 According to the testimony this
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          2  morning of Rafael Cestero, the Deputy Commissioner

          3  of HPD, in his testimony, he said that in regards to

          4  Greenpoint/Williamsburg, 180 blocks of this

          5  neighborhood is going to be upzoned and that there's

          6  the waterfront neighborhood, which, in all

          7  likelihood will probably use prevailing wage.  In

          8  fact, it would use prevailing wage. But, 78 percent

          9  of the projected upland development will be less

         10  than 50 percent.  He goes on to state that

         11  prevailing wage for the upland development would be

         12  less feasible.  And, you, in your testimony agree,

         13  that for units 50 percent or more, you would agree

         14  to an exemption, is that, so there's agreement, yes?

         15                 MR. FIGUEROA:  What we're saying is

         16  that we agree that when buildings have 50 units or

         17  less --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

         19                 MR. FIGUEROA:  -- Less than 50 units,

         20  yes, you can have more difficulty in establishing

         21  prevailing wage or that the prevailing wage should

         22  probably figure out differently than through

         23  legislation.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         25                 MR. FIGUEROA:  For buildings that are
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          2  above, have 50 units or more --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

          4                 MR. FIGUEROA:  -- We think that

          5  that's where the Council and the City government

          6  really need to act.  So, we have agreement on that

          7  issue.  We are not opposed to small developers

          8  having an opportunity, but, by the same token, we

          9  think that the big developers --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

         11                 MR. FIGUEROA:  -- Who can certainly

         12  afford to pay prevailing wage, should be required to

         13  pay prevailing wage, when they are getting

         14  substantial money from the City.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And I think

         16  that's a distinction that we all need to hear, that,

         17  in fact, there is some agreement.  Can you also tell

         18  me a little bit about what is happening on Long

         19  Island City, where those workers are not being paid

         20  prevailing wage and they have to work, because I

         21  have some of those constituents in my district, who

         22  have to work two and three jobs just to make ends

         23  meet.  Can you speak to that a little bit?

         24                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Right, we have seen

         25  the developments in the waterfront, Long Island

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  City, they have been carried out by a large company,

          3  Avalon (phonetic), who has been very involved, and

          4  all the developers too, in developing around the

          5  whole metro area.  And, you know, that's an example

          6  of a side that luxury, you know, residential

          7  buildings in which the workers are not under 32BJ

          8  standards.  They don't get 32BJ benefits and our

          9  contract, because we represent 80 percent of

         10  building service workers in the City, by State law,

         11  is the prevailing wage.  So, that's one example.

         12                 About five years ago, we had another

         13  example on the commercial side, which was a Brooklyn

         14  building, which some Members of the Council, you

         15  know, who were involved at the time, became very

         16  active in requiring the cleaning company at the

         17  Brooklyn Plaza to pay prevailing wage and benefits.

         18  They eventually did, but that was after the workers

         19  went on strike, there was a whole community

         20  involvement and they are both the tenants and the

         21  building developer received significant subsidies

         22  from the City.  So, this is not something new --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         24                 MR. FIGUEROA:  -- And what we're

         25  trying to do is that just like we did several years
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          2  ago, we raising again the issue and hopefully we'll

          3  be able to succeed with your support that when

          4  profits are not compromised, making sure that

          5  prevailing wage would be followed is essential to

          6  protect the standards of building service workers,

          7  like the ones you'll be hearing from today.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         10  Thank the three of you.

         11                 MR. FIGUEROA:  Okay, thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Bernie Carr,

         14  Donald Halperin, and Robert Altman.  I think you're

         15  not on.

         16                 MR. CARR:  I just turned it off, I

         17  just turned it off.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         19                 MR. CARR:  You'd think by now, I

         20  would know which is on and which is off --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I was just

         22  going to say that, but --

         23                 MR. CARR:  Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  -- I'm glad

         25  you said it.
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          2                 MR. CARR:  Good morning Madam Chair

          3  and Members of the Council.  Thank you for the

          4  opportunity to speak here today. I am Bernie Carr,

          5  Executive Director of the New York State Association

          6  for Affordable Housing.  I am here today with Donald

          7  Halperin, our Governmental Representative.

          8                 The bulk of our 250 members work

          9  throughout New York City's five boroughs and are

         10  collectively responsible for most of the housing

         11  built with City, State or Federal subsidies in New

         12  York City.  I'm here today in opposition to Intro.

         13  65 (sic).  While we believe that all employees

         14  should receive a living wage, the requirement that

         15  all building employees receive union wages would

         16  have serious consequences both for the financing and

         17  the operation of affordable housing.

         18                 If this bill is passed, its initial

         19  impact will be felt by developers attempting to

         20  secure private financing.  Banks base the amount

         21  they loan on the completed building's ability to

         22  generate sufficient cash flow to cover its expenses,

         23  including the real estate taxes, and still repay the

         24  mortgage.

         25                 The 421- a exemption is an important
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          2  part of that calculation, especially for affordable

          3  projects where the full benefits can last for the

          4  entire life of the mortgage.  Anything that can make

          5  these benefits revocable would cause banks to

          6  disregard the benefits in their underwriting and

          7  substantially limit the amounts they are willing to

          8  lend.

          9                 The bill would affect the amount of

         10  money available for affordable housing development

         11  by increasing maintenance and operating costs.

         12  Affordable housing developers work within strict

         13  rent income and profit guidelines, which are

         14  dictated by various government subsidy programs and

         15  enforced through regulatory agreements.

         16                 An increase in operating costs cannot

         17  be passed along even partially to the tenant or

         18  homeowner without jeopardizing the eligibility for

         19  subsidy.  A measure like this would work counter to

         20  the efforts to bring more affordable housing to the

         21  neighborhood by providing incentives to the

         22  developer to maximize the building's income by

         23  providing only market rate units and by limiting the

         24  availability of the subsidies.

         25                 Further, the bill would set a
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          2  dangerous precedent by linking a City tax incentive

          3  program to prevailing wages.  The Council has

          4  repeatedly demonstrated its commitment to affordable

          5  housing, most recently by allocating $12.5 million

          6  from the current year's budget for a targeted income

          7  program developed jointly by NYSAFAH at ACORN which

          8  we hope, by the way, that the Council will refund in

          9  this year's budget.

         10                 But, anything that drives up costs,

         11  either construction or operating costs, will result

         12  in more expensive units that may no longer be

         13  eligible for subsidy, resulting in the loss of

         14  Federal and State housing dollars.  If a prevailing

         15  wage requirement becomes part of the City's

         16  affordable housing programs, it will severely

         17  curtail, if not eliminate, our ability to build

         18  affordable units for New Yorkers.

         19                 Finally, modifying the 421- a program

         20  on a neighborhood by neighborhood basis is not good

         21  public policy. Over the years, the program has

         22  contributed to construction of over 87,000 market

         23  rate and affordable units.  When the time comes to

         24  rethink the program, we urge that this be done in a

         25  comprehensive manner.  Even if the proposed rezoning
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          2  passes next month, the thousands of units

          3  anticipated will not be built overnight, giving us

          4  all time to discuss ways to improve the program.

          5  Given all of these reasons, NYSAFAH urges you not to

          6  support this bill.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8  Bob.

          9                 MR. ALTMAN:  Thank you.  Good

         10  morning.  I'm Robert Altman.  I'm the legislative

         11  consultant to both the Building Industry Association

         12  of New York City and the Queens and Bronx Building

         13  Association.  Once again, thank you for the

         14  opportunity to testify today.  Earlier, we had

         15  testified on the fact that we supported Intro. 607

         16  because it, in fact, contributed to the

         17  affordability of housing.

         18                 It is in that sentiment that we

         19  oppose Intro. Number 605.  Simply put, it increases

         20  a cost of housing in the impacted Brooklyn

         21  community.  The legislation states that either

         22  prevailing wages be paid, or there are no 421- a

         23  benefits.  The legislation makes economic

         24  assumptions for the future that cannot be made in

         25  the present.  For example, let's say a new building
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          2  starts with benefits and starts financially stable,

          3  but then experience economic distress and needs to

          4  pay lower wages. However, paying lower wages leads

          5  to a loss of the tax exemption.

          6                 Either way, there is no simple

          7  solution to economic distress unless there is an

          8  increase in the rents. Knowing this, developers will

          9  plan a project that can withstand either no tax

         10  exemption or unpredictable financial concerns raised

         11  by the legislation.  This means that the developers

         12  will create housing that will be more expensive to

         13  eventual users.  I don't know if this is the goal of

         14  the Council, but is ultimately the result of the

         15  legislation.

         16                 But, the legislation has an even

         17  greater impact than what I have just said.  In

         18  spurring higher costs and hot rents, the legislation

         19  also increases the value of properties and the cost

         20  in rents in other buildings in the impacted area.

         21  Thus, the increased costs will not only impact the

         22  projects targeted in this community, but will also

         23  impact already existing housing in the community,

         24  raising rents and displacing families from already

         25  existing housing.  Moreover, if the increase is
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          2  significant enough, surrounding communities may also

          3  experience residual property value increases and

          4  increases in rent.  This can lead to further

          5  displacement and change the character of the

          6  neighborhoods involved.

          7                 We understand that Intro. Number 605

          8  has the best of intentions and it may seem good-

          9  hearted, but its unintended consequences will be

         10  negative.  In the strong real estate market, it may

         11  seem as if developers can afford to make this

         12  accommodation, however, developers will not be the

         13  ones who ultimately pay for this bill.  It will be

         14  the occupants of the units.

         15                 Moreover, an assumption of a strong

         16  real estate market is just that, an assumption.

         17  This bill lasts to 2022. Those who are involved in

         18  the real estate industry is this City, in the late

         19  1980's and early 1990's, when little or nothing was

         20  built, know that this is problematic.  Our industry

         21  has heard much from the Council in its desire for

         22  affordability, but we actually address more

         23  legislation that often has the opposite impact.

         24  Ultimately, Intro. Number 607 has anti-

         25  affordability. It will lead to higher housing costs.
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          2    For that reason, we oppose it.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4  Donny.

          5                 MR. HALPERIN:  No, I'm just here to

          6   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay --

          8                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- Take questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  -- Moral

         10  support?

         11                 MR. HALPERIN:  More than that,

         12  questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

         14  any questions? Diana Reyna.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Gentlemen, I

         16  just wanted to ask one question, at the end of the

         17  NYSAFAH testimony, there was a statement here that

         18  said, over the years, the program, as far as 421- a,

         19  has contributed to the construction of over 87,000

         20  market rate and affordable units.  But, out of the

         21  87,000, how many were affordable?

         22                 MR. CARR:  I don't have that in front

         23  of me, but that came from an independent budget

         24  office report that I actually have a copy, which

         25  I'll give you.  It doesn't break it down, that
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          2  total, it just says 87,000 total as of, I think,

          3  2002, when the report was written.  It has some

          4  statistics in there for specific years, it --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Since the

          6   '70's?  I'm sorry.

          7                 MR. CARR:  No, it has like, it has

          8  some statistics for 2002, where --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, this

         10  87,000, Bernie --

         11                 MR. CARR:  87,000 is --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- Since 2002?

         13                 MR. CARR:  No, since the beginning of

         14  the program through 2002, according to the

         15  Independent Budget Office, it's 87,000 units total.

         16  I don't have, nor did the report, have the figure

         17  for how many was affordable total since day one of

         18  the program.  They do have some breakdowns for, for

         19  individual years on that, which I don't have the

         20  report open in front of me, but we can look at it

         21  together later if you like.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I just wanted

         23  to just ask because normally the program that

         24  usually is opted for, pertaining to the 421- a

         25  program is the 80/20 concept, correct?
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          2                 MR. HALPERIN:  I don't there's been

          3  any new construction of affordable housing in New

          4  York City since the beginning of the program that

          5  hasn't gotten 421- a.  So, while other construction

          6  may also have received 421- a, I don't believe that

          7  there's been a single, I, this is just from what

          8  I've seen, I can't say I've studied every project

          9  and there would be no reason not to get it, because

         10  even, even in the exclusion area in Manhattan, if

         11  you're building with government subsidy, then you

         12  become eligible for it.

         13                 So, while, you know, one might focus

         14  on those non affordable housing projects that have

         15  gotten it, looking at it the other way, I don't

         16  think you can, well, I'm not saying you couldn't do

         17  affordable housing, but, and one of the concepts

         18  that we always try to press is the more per unit

         19  cost of affordable housing, the less units you're

         20  going to build because there's always a finite

         21  amount of money available for different programs.

         22  There are also some circumstances where a program

         23  limits the amount of subsidy and doesn't let you

         24  build, utilize more than one subsidy.  In those

         25  programs it might result in becoming ineligible even
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          2  for the subsidy if you push the cost up too much.

          3  So, --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Right, and,

          5  Don, we've had this conversation in the past and

          6  I've picked your brain because I think you're a

          7  think tank when it comes to affordable housing and

          8  I've asked you this question as far as 421- a, just

          9  pushing the 421- a program to its fullest potential

         10  in the current era we're living as opposed to back

         11  then in the  '70's, when it was created, when no

         12  development was occurring.

         13                 So, looking at those two time frames,

         14  right now, if 87,000 units had been built, but

         15  that's a combination of affordable and market rate,

         16  I would think that the 421- a was complimented with

         17  a certain percentage of affordable housing in order

         18  to receive it.  You could, you have an as of right

         19  tax abatement program, 421- a.  So, you don't have

         20  to build affordable housing with it.

         21                 MR. HALPERIN:  Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So that, where

         23  does the affordable units come in and what was the

         24  percentage of that or how was it attached to create

         25  affordable housing in the past?
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          2                 MR. ALTMAN:  Can I make a point here?

          3  Because I think there's something to be said about

          4  how the 421- a program works.  That is, you know,

          5  when you submit the applications, you have to show

          6  all your costs and all your, what your rents are

          7  projected to be and such.  There is a relation

          8  between the two.

          9                 Ultimately, if you're looking at how

         10  to make it affordable, 421- a is going to give you a

         11  tax break so you can make it more affordable.  It's

         12  on the edges in a lot of respects in that area.

         13  Because you are, your rents are related to your

         14  costs, there's, there's, in fact, a, a relationship

         15  in there and you cannot, in construction, get around

         16  the cost of bricks and mortar and labor.  So, with

         17  your rents being tied to some of that, you can't

         18  say, all of sudden, geez (phonetic), it cost me

         19  $200,000.00 to build this unit, but I can make it

         20  affordable as the basis of a cost, which would be a

         21  $100,000.00.  You just can't get around that, not

         22  matter what you do in this world, without a

         23  government subsidy, beyond just 421- a.

         24                 MR. CARR:  Can I interrupt and

         25  clarify a little bit? And I'll just do this briefly
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          2  and then, and I'll leave you a copy of this report

          3  and we can talk about it later.  There's actually

          4  almost four different programs within 421- a.

          5  There's an as of right program that anybody can take

          6  advantage of outside of the Manhattan exclusion

          7  zone, they're building market rate housing.  That's

          8  a 15 year exemption.

          9                 Within the Manhattan exclusion zone,

         10  if you building with government assistance, so that

         11  would be like an 80/20, within the Manhattan

         12  exclusion zone, you get a ten year exemption.  Okay,

         13  outside of the Manhattan exclusion zone, if you do

         14  affordable housing and if you receive governmental

         15  assistance, you can either receive a 20 year or a 25

         16  year exemption.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  That's the

         18  third program or the third concept.

         19                 MR. CARR:  That's kind of the third

         20  and fourth programs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, you get a

         22  20 year --

         23                 MR. CARR:  Either a 20 year or a 25

         24   --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Or a 25 year.
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          2                 MR. CARR:  Right.  The difference is

          3  the 25 year-

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  If you do

          5  affordable housing.

          6                 MR. CARR:  If you do affordable with

          7  governmental assistance in either a neighborhood

          8  preservation area or --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And what is

         10  the percentage of affordable housing?

         11                 MR. CARR:  That I don't know, and

         12  that's, that would obviously be, you know, good

         13  information to have.  I don't know whether anybody

         14  has, you know, has that available.  But, I guess the

         15  point is when you're talking about 421- a and our

         16  concern, Don, and my concern, is from the point of

         17  view of affordable housing development.  It's, you

         18  know, we don't claim to be experts on market rate

         19  housing development.  We are talking about 421- a

         20  only as it applies to, to affordable, and that would

         21  be either a ten year exemption in Manhattan in the

         22  exclusion zone or a 20 or a 25 year exemption, you

         23  know, outside of, of the Manhattan exclusion zone.

         24                 That doesn't, within the Manhattan

         25  exclusion zone, it doesn't have to be 100 percent
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          2  affordable, but it has to, all of these have to

          3  receive some form of governmental assistance and in

          4  return you get, you get a, generally a bigger bang

          5  for your buck than you would do if you were doing

          6  just straight market rate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Bernie, you

          8  said there was a fourth.

          9                 MR. CARR:  I sort of lumped the third

         10   --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  The 20/25?

         12                 MR. CARR:  I lumped those together.

         13  That's really sort of the third and fourth, the

         14  third and fourth, sort of, sub categories of 421- a.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  As you can

         16  see, I've had these discussions with Don and I've,

         17  you know, continued to just ask him how can we

         18  promote more affordable housing, because it depends

         19  on the area in which you're building.  Everything is

         20  going to receive some type of subsidy.  You're

         21  right, not everything is going to be 100 percent

         22  affordable with 100 percent subsidy.  But, those

         23  areas that are receiving the 20/25 year tax

         24  abatement is receiving some type of affordability

         25  rate.
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          2                 MR. CARR:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Correct?

          4                 MR. CARR:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, that

          6  market is dictating an affordability for that

          7  particular area.  But, it could be different and it

          8  can range in other areas.

          9                 MR. HALPERIN:  Yeah, when generally,

         10  certainly with DHCR, which I'm somewhat familiar

         11  with, and also with HPD, you do an, there's an

         12  underwriting that's required.  They don't just throw

         13  a subsidy at you and say, you know, you're, there's

         14  a maximum amount per unit available.  It's very

         15  often the case you don't get the maximum.

         16                 The underwriters at the agency will

         17  look at your proposal and it's up to the developer

         18  to demonstrate that they need a certain amount of

         19  subsidy in order to bring in the project for a

         20  certain rental or purchase price.  So, it's, the,

         21  one of the things they look at is, you know, what

         22  are your taxes, not to digress, but a big issue

         23  we're having upstate is you have these assessors who

         24  don't, don't assess you as if you're affordable

         25  housing and there's a bill pending in Albany, we're
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          2  working on that.  So, taxes are a big part of is

          3  this project going to eventually be affordable.  Is

          4  it going to be sustainable by the rents that have

          5  been approved, because under the --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Once the tax

          7  is over.

          8                 MR. HALPERIN:  Well, that's another

          9  issue.  What happens over time, you know, you have a

         10  problem.  But, but, there's a, the regulatory

         11  agreement requires that you maintain your rent

         12  levels throughout the period of the project, and

         13  that would be the subsidy, you know, there's other,

         14  whatever subsidy you're getting is an, they tell,

         15  you know, what the, the time of the regulatory

         16  agreement, and you have to bring it in at that

         17  price.  If there are additional costs, yeah, you

         18  could say, well, the developer can eat it, but

         19  sometimes that developer is a not for profit, just

         20  trying to house people.  Or, it may not be a not for

         21  profit, but if they don't have the money and they

         22  can't raise the rents, then the project's going to

         23  go belly- up and that does happen.

         24                 MR.  ALTMAN:  There's also, you know,

         25  you can really break it down into almost six areas
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          2  that you have to, that are focused in on the cost of

          3  the developer.  One, you have the cost of land.  How

          4  can you bring the cost of land down?  That's not

          5  necessarily an easy question.  The next thing is you

          6  have their soft costs, such as your architects, your

          7  engineers, your-

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Robert, I'm

          9  sorry --

         10                 MR. ALTMAN:  Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  The Chairwoman

         12  wants to move on --

         13                 MR. ALTMAN:  Okay, that's fine.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  She's a little

         15  concerned that --

         16                 MR. ALTMAN:  We'll talk about it

         17  another time.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- We're going

         19  off on a tangent and I want to show her, I want to

         20  just refocus so that she understands it's the

         21  affordable housing piece that I wanted to just

         22  secure because the argument is still out there

         23  whether or not mixing affordable housing plus

         24  prevailing wage would compromise the ability to do

         25  the affordable housing.  I just want to show you
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          2  gentlemen that on the waterfront, they're not

          3  building for an AMI of 50 percent.  They're building

          4  for people who can pay $1.3 million, so that I want

          5  to express to you these are the same folks that are

          6  going to be receiving the 421 tax abatement.

          7                 MR. CARR:  Well, but so will, you

          8  know, folks who are doing, you know, affordable

          9  housing in the upland area as well.  Also --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Not just the

         11  upland, along the waterfront, I would hope.

         12                 MR. CARR:  And as well as along the

         13  waterfront. What I was also going to say is,

         14  hopefully, along the waterfront there will be, you

         15  know, the inclusion area, there will be an

         16  inclusionary component and so there will be, whether

         17  it be condos or rentals, that they'll be affordable

         18  housing in, what I guess will be high- rises, you

         19  know, along the waterfront.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And I want to

         21  express to you, Bernie, that even on the upland in

         22  my neighborhood, I have condominiums being sold at

         23  $1.3 million.

         24                 MR. CARR:  Really?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Yes.

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          3  Member James.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  In Brooklyn,

          5  it's a rush to the gold and so I support

          6  Councilwoman Reyna in her efforts to reach 40

          7  percent of affordable housing in the

          8  Williamsburg/Greenpoint rezoning.  But, I guess,

          9  gentlemen, I want to summarize, I guess, three

         10  questions, sort of put them all into one question

         11  and perhaps you can answer that, answer these

         12  questions.

         13                 One, are you aware that 32BJ

         14  represents over 80 percent of residential building

         15  service workers in New York City and the vast

         16  majority of these buildings receive a 421- a tax

         17  abatement?  And, wouldn't that suggest that these

         18  buildings can afford to pay prevailing wage?  That's

         19  question one- a.

         20                 Question two or one- b is the Pratt

         21  Report, which demonstrates that developers can build

         22  affordable housing, pay the prevailing wage to

         23  building service workers and still make a very

         24  healthy profit, and developers can still make a

         25  healthy profit.  Do you disagree with their findings
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          2  and/or their analysis?

          3                 My last question, which is one- c,

          4  is, apparently there's somewhat of a meeting of the

          5  minds in that HPD and representatives of Local 32BJ

          6  and other advocates have indicated that they would

          7  support limiting the application of this legislation

          8  to 50 units or more.  Would you --

          9                 MR. CARR:  A couple of things since

         10  it's, you know, an a, b and c question.  In terms of

         11  point a, I don't know of that percentage how many of

         12  those, and I would suspect few, if any, of those

         13  buildings are affordable subsidized, you know,

         14  operating under existing subsidy programs.  Point b

         15  of the question, remind me, I have the answer,

         16  remind me what point b of the question was

         17  Councilwoman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Pratt Report.

         19                 MR. CARR:  Pratt Report, yes, I

         20  haven't seen it. The testimony today was the first

         21  time that I became aware of it. You know, I  have

         22  the greatest respect for Brad Lander (phonetic) and

         23  the folks at Pratt.  I would love to look at a copy

         24  of that report and either give him our comments, or,

         25  you know, maybe it will change our perspective.
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          2  But, we haven't seen it and we'd really like the

          3  opportunity to look at it and discuss it with Pratt.

          4                 Finally, and you'll have refresh my

          5  memory on the third question.  I have the answer, I

          6  just keep forgetting the questions.  The 50 units,

          7  yeah, the 50 units, this is the first that we heard

          8  of that today as well.  We'd really like the

          9  opportunity to go back and talk to our members about

         10  that, about this.  The only, off the top of my head,

         11  concern that I would have about the 50 units is if

         12  you're doing, you know, a mixed project and perhaps

         13  like a mixed condominium project on the waterfront,

         14  where the low income condo owners would, would also

         15  be paying, you know, a share of this higher

         16  maintenance costs. So, that would just be a concern

         17  that I think would need to be addressed somehow.

         18                 I know that HPD has introduced

         19  legislation that would make it possible to ease the

         20  burden on the low income condo owners, but that's

         21  not, that's not law yet.  So, that's just some

         22  thoughts, but certainly we'd be happy to go back to

         23  our members and see what they think about limiting

         24  it to 50 units and more.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Lastly, do you
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          2  support Councilwoman Reyna's effort to reach the 40

          3  percent goal in the Greenpoint/Williamsburg

          4  rezoning?

          5                 MR. HALPERIN:  We, we're affordable

          6  housing developers.  The more affordable housing

          7  that's built, the happier we are.  So --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, the answer

          9  is yes?

         10                 MR. HALPERIN:  Yeah, so we would

         11  definitely love to achieve a higher amount of

         12  affordable housing.  We don't have a formal opinion

         13  about a certain percentage.  But, we, we, you know,

         14  we'd be supportive of efforts that would result in

         15  that.

         16                 If I might just throw in two things.

         17  I won't drag on long, but there's two other concerns

         18  that we have.  First of all, the, and I don't know

         19  whether 50 units, we would like to throw that out to

         20  our members and see.  But, because we have taken

         21  positions both in the City and in Albany to get

         22  affordable housing exclusions, that does not

         23  necessarily mean that we otherwise think legislation

         24  is perfect.  But, our concerns are our concerns and

         25  sometimes we approach it that way.

                                                            122

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Whether or not a 50 unit limit is a

          3  defacto exclusion of affordable housing, it

          4  certainly would, I think, cover most of the

          5  affordable housing being built.  But, whether or not

          6  there might, you know, there's a better number or

          7  another way to approach it, we don't know.

          8                 I just, I would also like to add on

          9  the smaller units, because we speak in terms of the

         10  actual cost of paying people prevailing wage.  There

         11  is another cost and another problem, and that's the

         12  administration of it.  I'm not a prevailing wage

         13  expert, but I have been, sort of, brought in after

         14  the fact to some prevailing, to some people who had

         15  prevailing wage problems, you know, not, well -- and

         16  the point is, there's a lot of paperwork and you

         17  could make an error and if you get penalized under

         18  this bill, you can lose, not only can you be fined

         19  for failing to comply with the prevailing wage law,

         20  you now lose all your benefits.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  But, Senator,

         22  you're well aware that HPD already is required to

         23  monitor prevailing wage.  I mean, they already have

         24  a system in place where its contractors are required

         25  to pay prevailing wage to building service workers
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          2  and other classifications of workers as well.

          3  They're presently required, so you're not imposing

          4  another burden on them.  They're already currently

          5  required.

          6                 MR. HALPERIN:  But, I'm talking about

          7  the, our developers don't have to do it and I don't

          8  know who this burden is on, but it's not our

          9  developers and we do know -- and by the way, another

         10  thing you should be aware of, that, that we do, our

         11  developers, reach out to the local communities and I

         12  think you know that if you work with them, to do try

         13  to and do try to employ local people and, you know,

         14  and, particularly -- let me just throw out another

         15  concern of ours, which, this is a rhetorical

         16  question.  We're not going to get into a debate

         17  about this, but what happens if this bill becomes

         18  law and the building trades come to you and say,

         19  you're given them prevailing wage, what about us?

         20                 Now, we don't have the numbers on the

         21  maintenance workers and how that would affect it.

         22  We do have numbers on what that would mean for

         23  construction and we're talking about between 30 and

         24  40 percent more construction costs.  It is a concern

         25  of ours, you know, the old slippery slope or a
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          2  camel's nose under the tent --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

          4                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- And not being

          5  unfamiliar with politics, I know when you set a

          6  precedent like this, you're, it's going to be a lot

          7  more difficult to resist what has already been

          8  pressed politically for many years now, and

          9  rejected, by the way, particularly in Albany, where

         10  many of the legislators understand the horrendous

         11  impact it would have on your ability to develop

         12  affordable housing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Well,

         14  Commissioner slash Senator slash, you've got a lot

         15  of hats, the slippery slope argument, I recognize

         16  that opening up the pandora's box, I recognize that.

         17    But, as a former politician, you recognize you

         18  have to deal with the issue before you at the

         19  present time.  So, I don't want to go down that

         20  road.  Clearly, the assemblyperson, Chair of

         21  Housing, is here in the room, Assemblyman Lopez, and

         22  if anyone can speak to the dynamics of Albany, he

         23  can.  But, I thank you for your testimony this

         24  afternoon.

         25                 MR. ALTMAN:  If I could just have a
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          2  moment to comment, because, just for our

          3  associations with respect to your, wound up being

          4  three part first question and second part question.

          5  With respect to the, you mentioned that 80 percent

          6  of the buildings have the 32BJ workers, I would seem

          7  to say that that somewhat indicates that 32BJ can

          8  probably hold its own without having the help of

          9  this legislation.  Same thing with respect to the

         10  Pratt Report.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, let me

         12  just stop you there.  So, are you suggesting that

         13  you're against the codification of this provision?

         14                 MR. ALTMAN:  I'm not against

         15  prevailing wage if it doesn't have a substantial

         16  impact on the affordability, but I don't think it's

         17  something that should be legislated.  It should be

         18  between the building owner and the workers, trying

         19  to work out how exactly their relationship is going

         20  to exist.  There are methodologies outside of this

         21  legislation for 32BJ to get jobs in those areas, and

         22  I don't think it's necessarily the purview of

         23  legislation in this instance.

         24                 The second thing, with respect to the

         25  Pratt Report, we know what the current conditions
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          2  are and I'm not going to doubt the Pratt Report with

          3  respect to the current conditions. But, I am going

          4  to point back to another project and another area

          5  that was very similar and that was Long Island City

          6  and that was mentioned today.  But, going back in

          7  history, let's go back to the original history of

          8  Long Island City.  That was a project that was going

          9  to happen, was dead, dead in the water for a number

         10  of years.  It went nowhere during the 19, early

         11  1990's. That was supposed to happen sooner.  That

         12  was a project that had a lot of problems getting off

         13  the ground.  There were concessions that had to be

         14  made to make it go forward.  So, you never know what

         15  the market is.

         16                 Now, if it was going up in Long

         17  Island City, you'd probably make the same arguments.

         18    They'd probably make the same arguments that are

         19  being made here.  But, you don't know the market and

         20  this is legislation that's lasting to 2022.  So, in

         21  that respect, you're imposing something without

         22  knowing the market in future years and, trust me,

         23  there are cycles and there have been multiple

         24  cycles.  We're in a hot one right now.  That may end

         25  three months from now, you don't know that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  But, the

          3  problems in the 1990's related to Long Island City

          4  had nothing to do with prevailing wage, correct?

          5                 MR. ALTMAN:  It had to do with the

          6  real estate market in general and the fact that

          7  you're --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  In general.

          9                 MR. ALTMAN:  -- Dealing, you're

         10  dealing with costs here, you're dealing with an

         11  element of development.  The next thing with respect

         12  to 50 units.  I'd only caution the following: When

         13  you set a threshold on something, it is an issue,

         14  and I'll give you a perfect example of developers

         15  who are doing affordable housing projects in other

         16  parts of this City.  They had zoning where they

         17  could have done seven units.  But, the sprinkler

         18  bill didn't apply to three and the economics of the

         19  sprinkler bill changed.  So, even though they could

         20  go up to seven units, they only did three.

         21                 You're going to have situations where

         22  people go, I could do 60 units, but you know

         23  something, it changed the economics, I'll go down to

         24  50.  And, if you throw that on top of the fact that

         25  you don't know where the market's going, you've
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          2  created a situation, in stone, right now, which may

          3  not be relevant in future years.

          4                 With respect to the 40 percent, I

          5  think it's an admirable goal and it's something that

          6  anybody should support if the economics work.  If

          7  the economics don't work, you face the, you face a

          8  situation where you've put it in there, in stone,

          9  the market changes, and nothing gets built.  I don't

         10  know, you have to figure out how does it work at

         11  different times and the markets.  It's not an easy

         12  thing and I'm not saying that it is. But, putting it

         13  in stone sets you to a situation where you may start

         14  in a certain way and it may work right now, but if

         15  the market changes, in two years, a year, you get

         16  nothing, not even the units you think you were going

         17  to get.  It's happened before, it'll happen again.

         18  Be careful.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

         20  you.  Next, we have Father Jim O'Shea, Marnie

         21  McGregor and Bertha Lewis. And, everybody that

         22  speaks is required to sign one of these sheets.  So,

         23  if you have not and you've already spoken, you must

         24  still sign one of these sheets.  Again, I remind you

         25  that you're on a three minutes clock, so I would ask
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          2  you to stay within the three minutes.  One of you

          3  decide who speaks first and let's go.

          4                 FATHER O'SHEA:  All right.  They've

          5  decided the man is going to go first.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Absolutely.

          7                 FATHER O'SHEA:  All right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And not just

          9  because you're father whoever.

         10                 FATHER O'SHEA:  No, no, no, no, no.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Right, okay.

         12                 FATHER O'SHEA:  And it's certainly

         13  not on looks. Father Jim O'Shea, the Director of

         14  Churches United for Fair Housing.  I just come with

         15  a simple message today, we have a very aggressive

         16  campaign in Williamsburg/Greenpoint for, as

         17  Councilwoman Reyna is a champion of, the waterfront,

         18  affordability, the 40 percent.  We're working

         19  extremely aggressively on that, for one reason and

         20  one reason only, it's for the dignity of human

         21  beings and the right for people to find a place to

         22  live.

         23                 This issue is also an issue about

         24  human rights. It's about the right of a human being

         25  to make a decent wage and that we want this
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          2  waterfront not only to house people, but also to

          3  offer an opportunity for people and we hope,

          4  especially, we know the Councilwoman is very strong

          5  on this, but people in the community to also be the

          6  workers in these buildings to make a decent enough

          7  wage.  So, for us, it's an issue of human rights.

          8  For us, it's an issue of the dignity of human

          9  beings.

         10                 We support housing and we also really

         11  support, if it's and we think the Pratt's study

         12  certainly does that, if it's feasible, if it works

         13  together, those values can be merged that are, the

         14  dream world is that we build good housing for people

         15  and that people who work in those buildings also can

         16  live in those buildings with their families and have

         17  some kind of a future in the community.  So, thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         20  You're also the briefest.  I'd love to hear one of

         21  your sermons.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Amen.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You're

         24  parishioners must love you.

         25                 FATHER O'SHEA:  I go on and on on

                                                            131

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Sunday.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, okay.

          4  Next.

          5                 MS. LEWIS:  Good morning.  Thank you

          6  Chairwoman Provenzano and Members of this Committee

          7  for giving me a chance to testify today.  My name is

          8  Bertha Lewis and I'm the Executive Director of New

          9  York ACORN and, as you know, New York ACORN

         10  represents over 28,000 low and moderate income

         11  community residents throughout the five boroughs of

         12  New York City, as well as Upstate and Long Island.

         13                 Over the last year and a half, I've

         14  testified before this City Council on many occasions

         15  and I've testified on many occasions to say, like

         16  the Father here, that we need affordable housing in

         17  the rezonings that you are now considering.

         18                 ACORN has fought tirelessly for

         19  affordable housing in the Hudson Yards, in the

         20  Atlantic Yards project and in

         21  Greenpoint/Williamsburg.  Local 32BJ's proposal for

         22  prevailing wages for builder service workers in

         23  Greenpoint/Williamsburg is not only compatible with

         24  the affordable housing goals that we are fighting

         25  for, it is necessary and a consistent partner to
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          2  those goals.  Workers must have housing that they

          3  can afford and they have to have a decent wage so

          4  that they can afford to live in those houses.

          5                 No issues are more important in our

          6  members' communities than affordable housing and

          7  good decent jobs.  Every year it becomes harder for

          8  working New Yorkers to afford the things that they

          9  need, housing, food, clothing and transportation are

         10  becoming more and more expensive.  Without good jobs

         11  and decent, affordable housing, we will not be able

         12  to live in New York City.

         13                 In Greenpoint/Williamsburg, the New

         14  York City Council has a choice, will it produce a

         15  plan that is responsible and that works for working

         16  New Yorkers, or will the plan only benefit the

         17  select few?  This plan needs 40 percent affordable

         18  housing, but it also needs Intro. 605's commitment

         19  to prevailing wages.

         20                 Some have suggested that we are

         21  asking too much, that developers, as you just heard,

         22  can't afford it.  They can't afford affordable and

         23  prevailing wages.  This is a false choice. It's

         24  false because we know it is false.  ACORN builds

         25  affordable housing.  We are developers and I can
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          2  tell you that we, in our housing, pay prevailing and

          3  union wages.  The Pratt Institute has run the

          4  numbers and Local 32BJ's proposal will cost

          5  developers less than one percent of their profits.

          6  Ask them about their profits.

          7                 Moreover, it's an absurd choice.

          8  Workers should not and will not choose between

          9  decent housing and prevailing wage.  We can do both

         10  and we should do both.  I urge the Council to win

         11  affordable housing at 40 percent and Intro. 605 in

         12  the Greenpoint/Williamsburg area.  I would like to

         13  extend to Council Member Reyna, that you have

         14  another choice other than Don Halperin about how to

         15  build affordable housing and how do it and also what

         16  the meaning of affordable is between those of us who

         17  are non- profit developers and those of us who are

         18  NYSAFAH developers, who are for profit developers.

         19  We would be happy to assist this Council.  Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         22                 MS. MCGREGOR:  Good afternoon Chair

         23  Provenzano and Members of the Committee.

         24  Unfortunately, Brad Lander could not be here today

         25  due to Passover, but I want to provide some
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          2  information.  As you can tell, I've submitted our

          3  report, the Issue Brief that we released.  My name

          4  is Marnie McGregor.  I'm a Senior Policy Analyst

          5  with the Pratt Center and I'm here today to express

          6  our support for the legislation proposed by Council

          7  Member Jackson and Service Employees International

          8  Union Local 32BJ.

          9                 The Pratt Center recently ran a

         10  series of financial analyses to carefully examine

         11  the effects of the bill, and we determined that it

         12  is equitable, financially sound and publicly

         13  responsible development policy.  The Pratt Center

         14  has been working closely elected officials,

         15  community organizations to make sure that a

         16  substantial percentage of new units are affordable

         17  to community residents in the

         18  Greenpoint/Williamsburg rezoning.

         19                 The new developments, as you've

         20  heard, will create several hundred building service

         21  jobs in an area where the average income is well

         22  below $30,000.00 per year.  The unemployment rate is

         23  high and manufacturing jobs have been declining.

         24                 So, I'll just briefly highlight some

         25  of the results of our analysis and the financials
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          2  have been included as part of the Issue Brief and we

          3  be welcome, welcome opportunity to discuss these

          4  assumptions that have been addressed.

          5                 The prevailing, proposed prevailing

          6  wage requirement would not have a significant

          7  adverse impact on developer return.  In all the

          8  scenarios that we've outlined on page six of the

          9  Issue brief, we summarized those scenarios, market

         10  rate, as well as with affordable housing.  The

         11  financial impact would be less than point five

         12  percent.

         13                 Furthermore, as was mentioned before,

         14  we dispute the fact that it would impede the

         15  developers' decision to include affordable housing.

         16  So, the substantial, clearly, the profit is,

         17  substantial profits are to be made in market rate,

         18  less of a profit to be made in affordable housing.

         19  But, we still see a significant, no significant

         20  difference between the prevailing wage and non-

         21  prevailing wage and that's with off- site and on-

         22  site units.

         23                 As 32BJ representatives testified,

         24  the developer, we don't believe, is sort of taking a

         25  hit here.  However, the benefits for the workers are
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          2  significant.  The building service workers could go

          3  from approximately $36,000.00 to over $47,000.00

          4  with prevailing wage and this is a significant

          5  increase that would allow families to cover basic

          6  needs, such as food, housing and child care.

          7                 Finally, we recognize that this bill

          8  does not include any first source hiring, but we do

          9  want to say, we support Council Member Reyna's

         10  efforts to ensure that 50 percent of new building

         11  service and construction jobs go to residents of

         12  Greenpoint/Williamsburg.  We believe it is important

         13  for developers to hire local residents for these

         14  jobs.

         15                 To address some of the issues of

         16  Administration, we certainly think that there could

         17  be other agencies that might be able to participate

         18  that have experience that could perhaps report to

         19  HPD.  I know DSBS has done some good work in that

         20  area of training and matching.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         22  Do we have questions?  Diana Reyna.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Good morning.

         24  I just wanted ask you a question concerning the 421-

         25  a tax abatement program.  After the number of years
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          2  have expired, whether it's ten, 15, 20, 25, if the

          3  building is built so that it's a mixed use concept,

          4  of course, if the affordable units are built off

          5  site, you know, adjacent to, in its own separate

          6  building, then this scenario wouldn't be applicable.

          7    But, what happens to the affordable units in a

          8  mixed building when the exemption expires, so that

          9  now taxes are going to kick in?  Do those affordable

         10  units remain affordable, was that part of your

         11  numbers, as you analyzed having prevailing wage, as

         12  well as affordable housing?

         13                 MS. MCGREGOR:  Yes, we recognize the,

         14  the time line that was, these different stages of

         15  exemption, and that has been included.  Again, I

         16  think Brad and others at our group would be happy to

         17  talk further about some of those details of how that

         18  would work and how that would actually impact the

         19  affordability, because that is an issue.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, in your

         21  report, you show the scenario of this particular

         22  concept after the exemption has expired?

         23                 MS. MCGREGOR:  I believe that the

         24  profits are, there's a time line in the spreadsheets

         25  and if that hasn't --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I'm not

          3  referring to profit.  I'm referring to affordable

          4  housing remaining affordable.

          5                 MS. MCGREGOR:  Right, but in terms of

          6  the analysis, they included the length of time that

          7  we're talking about for the tax exemption.  So,

          8  which impacts ultimately on the affordability

          9  numbers.  So, that has been included in the

         10  analysis, is, the time lines that you're referring

         11  to for the tax, the 421- a.

         12                 MS. LEWIS:  Council Member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Yes.

         14                 MS. LEWIS:  When you talk about 421-

         15  a and long term affordability, you're talking at two

         16  different things. Right now, under current HPD

         17  programs, even when you do mixed use on- site, the

         18  units that are affordable are put under the rent

         19  stabilization.  So, that is one protection.

         20                 However, right now, whether you do

         21  this Intro. Or not, developers and how they finance

         22  and when they take their money out rather, and how

         23  they remortgage the property, has more to do with

         24  long- term affordability than the 421- a tax

         25  abatement.
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          2                 When you actually lay out the

          3  financing and how you're going to do, your

          4  performers over 20, 30 years, you can, at the time

          5  that you're doing the program with HPD, actually

          6  build in 30 year affordability.  Most of, most of

          7  the developers choose not to go that term.  Right

          8  now --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  But, you're

         10  still --

         11                 MS. LEWIS:  -- The programs, it is

         12  the subsidy programs that do not require any sort of

         13  long- term affordability after the 421- a and it is

         14  not the 421- a that keeps those affordable

         15  apartments affordable.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  But, I don't

         17  want to, I think what we continue to see is this

         18  expiration date --

         19                 MS. LEWIS:  Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  That's what

         21  I'm trying to avoid.  So, you're not telling me --

         22                 MS. LEWIS:  But, see, what you're --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- Anything --

         24                 MS. LEWIS:  -- But, what you're --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- Different.
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          2                 MS. LEWIS:  No.  What you need to do,

          3  and as I said, we will sit down with you and take

          4  you step by step, the what, how this development

          5  works, so that you have another point of view than

          6  the experts that you have been using, to look at how

          7  you can ensure long- term affordability that have

          8  nothing to do with the 421- a's.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  But, you just

         10  mentioned that there's still that 30 year expiration

         11   --

         12                 MS. LEWIS:  No --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- That's out

         14  there --

         15                 MS. LEWIS:  It is not --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- That could

         17   --

         18                 MS. LEWIS:  -- 30 year expiration.

         19  Developers, such as NYSAFAH, do not choose to build

         20  that in when they're laying out the development

         21  plan.  You can choose to put that in.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Choose what to

         23  put in?

         24                 MS. LEWIS:  To put in long- term

         25  affordability for 30 years.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And what's

          3  long- term?

          4                 MS. LEWIS:  You could --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  30 years?

          6                 MS. LEWIS:  -- Have, right now, we

          7  believe it's 30 years is long- term, that's, that's

          8  where you want to start.  You can go to 40 if you

          9  wish.  It is how you construct the project.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  What about --

         11                 MS. LEWIS:  The 421- a is only one

         12  tiny piece of this.  It is not the thing that will

         13  stop affordability.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  If I may, what

         15  I'm referring to is a lifetime affordability.

         16                 MS. LEWIS:  Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, I don't

         18  want hear 20, 30, 40.

         19                 MS. LEWIS:  Well, since you want a

         20  lifetime affordability, then what you can do is put

         21  this into a land trust.  Again, as I said, we would

         22  be willing to work with you, because the 421- a is

         23  not the thing that keeps long- term affordability.

         24  There are other pieces of development that can keep

         25  it affordable forever.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I'm going to

          4  suggest that if, you know, if you really so desire

          5  Diana, to sit down with the folks and, you know, so

          6  you'll hook up with each other, okay? Thank you all.

          7                 MS. LEWIS:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Last, but

          9  not least, we have Michael Slattery and John Doyle.

         10  Before all of the union people leave, I would just

         11  like to say, it was great having you. Usually, when

         12  I have union people at my Hearings, they're hanging

         13  from the chandeliers.  So, this was great.  I don't

         14  want to sound condescending, but you were very

         15  respectful and these four ladies that are sitting

         16  here still, Arie, where are you?  I think you should

         17  take them out to lunch.  They're the most -- okay.

         18                 MR. SLATTERY:  Good afternoon,

         19  Michael Slattery, Real Estate Board of New York.

         20  We're here to oppose Intro. 605 for two reasons.

         21  One, the pay in wages should be set through

         22  negotiations and not through legislation.  Two, we

         23  believe that the imposition of the prevailing wage

         24  in 421- a undermines the benefits intended to

         25  produce housing.
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          2                 We've, as a City, has been one who

          3  badly, is not a model for housing production and

          4  actually its abysmal.  However, I think we are a

          5  model for affordable housing production and we'll

          6  get to that.  Just an example of our inadequate

          7  housing production, in the 1960's, before there was

          8  421- a, we were actually producing, on average,

          9  35,000 units a year.

         10                 421- a was established in the early

         11  1970's and throughout the   '70's, we produced

         12  18,000 units of housing a year, down almost half.

         13  In the  '80's, our production dropped to 11,000

         14  units a year and in the  '90's, we were closer to

         15  8,000 units a year.  All of this while there was

         16  421- a benefits without the kind of additional

         17  obligations that's being sought to be proposed here

         18  today.

         19                 So, I would suggest that we are not

         20  doing enough for housing production.  Adding this

         21  obligation is going to make it more difficult.  In

         22  particular, in terms of the, HPD, in terms of our

         23  affordable housing production, just as an example,

         24  between 1987 and 2003, the City produced roughly

         25  198,000 units.  Looking at HPD's new housing
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          2  construction, which included affordable housing,

          3  housing that were built in low income neighborhoods

          4  in the new, new market program, they accounted for

          5  roughly 24 percent of the housing units that were

          6  built, so that there was a substantial amount of

          7  affordable housing built using HPD.

          8                 In addition, that doesn't include the

          9  20 percent low income in those 80/20 projects,

         10  because that information wasn't available.  In some

         11  ways, New York City really is the model for the

         12  nation and the envy of many municipalities in terms

         13  of its commitment to affordable housing, the

         14  programs that its provided and the revenues that its

         15  provided, as well as, you know, past and present

         16  Administrations and past and present Council deserve

         17  credit for that.

         18                 In Greenpoint/Williamsburg, I think

         19  we are looking at a very unique set of economic

         20  conditions, which work against this program and this

         21  bill.  One, in addition to the affordable housing

         22  that we've talking about, this is also an area which

         23  has waterfront access requirements, so there is an

         24  obligation to provide open space.

         25                 In addition, because it's an older

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  and manufacturing area, there is not adequate

          3  infrastructure there to support the housing that's

          4  being proposed.  So, there will be infrastructure

          5  costs for gas, utilities, water, as well as streets

          6  and sewers.  Also, because of the former

          7  manufacturing, these are going to be areas that will

          8  require environmental remediation and does some of

          9  them know that there are, the site conditions here

         10  are such that you can't go very deep, so that there

         11  are ground conditions that need to be dealt with.

         12                 An issue we've always pointed out as

         13  well, there is very, not a sufficient density in

         14  this proposal to help offset some of those costs.

         15  Just as a comparison, in the

         16  Greenpoint/Williamsburg, we're looking at a density

         17  here of about four to 4.7.  Battery Park City, which

         18  is kind of, talking about the model of waterfront

         19  development, there's a, we built it at 12, roughly.

         20  So, I think for these reasons, we have, you know,

         21  specifically some questions about adding additional

         22  burdens.

         23                 One other thing, I think, also, that

         24  this is not a tested housing market.  Just some kind

         25  of public information to demonstrate that.
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          2  Greenpoint/Williamsburg, over the period between

          3  1994 and 2003, produced roughly 200 units a year.

          4  The City, overall, was producing 10,000.  So, that's

          5  in context.

          6                 Looking at a couple of other

          7  neighborhoods, for example, Clinton was producing

          8  basically, more than, almost 1,000 units a year,

          9  compared to the 200 or so in

         10  Greenpoint/Williamsburg.  The Upper West Side was

         11  producing about six -- excuse me, the Upper West

         12  Side was producing, was closer to 6,600 units a year

         13  and the Upper East Side was producing 4,700, 470

         14  units a year.

         15                 So, when you look at those numbers

         16  relative to the Manhattan market as opposed to

         17  Greenpoint/Williamsburg, you're looking at a market

         18  that is untested and does not show the kind of

         19  support for housing that you would expect to, to be

         20  able to put on the burdens that I've identified in

         21  terms of site conditions, as well as the additional

         22  burden that's being placed on with this proposal.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  John, do you

         25  have a few words?
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          2                 MR. DOYLE:  I'm just, I'm just here

          3  for the questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, okay.

          5  Do we have any questions?  Of course, Councilwoman

          6  Reyna.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you

          8  Maddie.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I think it's

         10  her hormones that are jumping up and down making her

         11  ask all these questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I wanted to

         13  just ask a question concerning the Battery Park

         14  City.  That project itself was supposed to generate

         15  a separate fund to promote the creation of new

         16  housing and, I believe, preservation of housing.  Of

         17  that money, very little has been used and I'm

         18  assuming that the 12.0 FAR was just for that,

         19  correct me if I'm wrong.

         20                 MR. SLATTERY:  The, I don't know the

         21  details of Battery Park City financing and where the

         22  money was intended to go.  There's also a

         23  substantial amount of commercial development there

         24  as well.  I think the point that we are trying to

         25  make with the illustration is that it's a model
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          2  community, it's high density, it has open space, and

          3  with those kinds of densities, a lot of these costs

          4  are more readily absorbed and we're looking at a

          5  different density here --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Michael, I

          7  appreciate, you know, the different density, but I

          8  wanted you to understand why the density was there.

          9  You know, it was supposed to generate a fund to

         10  create affordable housing.  Throughout the City of

         11  New York, very little has been produced as far as

         12  affordable housing is concerned.  John.

         13                 MR. DOYLE:  Yes, but the money was

         14  generated and paid by the developers --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Right.

         16                 MR. DOYLE:  -- What the City of New

         17  York did with it afterwards is certainly beyond our

         18  control and we've --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I agree.

         20                 MR. DOYLE:  -- All been reading in

         21  the newspapers about that fund and how it's been

         22  used or hasn't been used and how it might be used

         23  prospectively, but, that's, that's away from the

         24  development community.  The intent was to generate

         25  the fund, to generate the money and, in fact, it was

                                                            149

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  successful.  It did generate that money.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  John, you're

          4  absolutely right.  Can I also ask you, would you

          5  agree that if those funds were to be used to

          6  increase the percentages, to lower the cost on the

          7  developer for rezoning that is taking place on the

          8  waterfront in Greenpoint/Williamsburg, that perhaps

          9  then this particular development could be successful

         10  and further beneficial to all economics or all

         11  economic backgrounds of families?

         12                 MR. DOYLE:  It's, the bottom line is

         13  that it costs money to building housing and there

         14  are different, different formulas that can be used.

         15  So, if I understand your question correctly, are you

         16  saying that if the City were to put up some funds to

         17  subsidize the development, would it then be possible

         18  to lower the rents in some of those buildings to

         19  make it more affordable?  Is that the question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Yes.

         21                 MR. DOYLE:  Absolutely.  It's all,

         22  it's spongeable (phonetic), okay?  If the developer,

         23  if the developer is putting up 100 percent of the

         24  money, then, then his ability to build the project

         25  is dependent upon that calculation.
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          2                 If the City of New York is going to

          3  put up 50 percent of the money, then the rents don't

          4  need to, to be as high, the, it's, it really, for

          5  us, is balance sheet type of process.  That's why,

          6  it's why we, we oppose so many of the things that

          7  are being discussed because the, the, at the end of

          8  the day, the question is not what the Council

          9  decides this project should look like.  At the end

         10  of the day, it's whether or not the developer will

         11  build it.

         12                 Because, if the developer won't build

         13  it, then all the good intentions in the world go by

         14  the wayside and it's, and it's our, and it's our

         15  position that, that there are incredible burdens

         16  being placed on this plan, and we understand a lot

         17  of the reasons for people for asking for those

         18  things.  But, but, finally, in the final analysis,

         19  the project itself is at risk.

         20                 MR. SLATTERY:  But --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And, I'm

         22  sorry.

         23                 MR. SLATTERY:  I would just add to

         24  John's point, as I said, that may ensure

         25  affordability, but that doesn't ensure success.
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          2  Market conditions may be such that, and we're seeing

          3  this now, construction costs are rising, interest

          4  rates are rising and it may be the case that the

          5  market that one expects to be there may not be

          6  there, and I think the illustration someone gave

          7  before about Long Island City, how that was the next

          8  great waterfront community, you know, and here we

          9  are, 20 years later, and it's not quite the

         10  community we expected to see.

         11                 So, what my point is that if their

         12  buildings are not getting done because the market

         13  risk becomes too great, no matter how much money you

         14  put into it to make it more affordable, it's not

         15  going to make it successful and not going to make it

         16  viable.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  During the

         18  year that Battery, what year was Battery Park City

         19  created?

         20                 MR. SLATTERY:  Battery Park City went

         21  through a number of design schemes, but essentially

         22  it began I would say --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  When the

         24  mortgage was approved.

         25                 MR. SLATTERY:  Well, I think the,
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          2  you're looking at probably in the mid- 70's, when

          3  the --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And the

          5  interest rate at that time was how much?

          6                 MR. SLATTERY:  The City was in a

          7  fiscal crisis, you know, at that point and --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And at that

          9  point, you were able to, the City expected the

         10  developers to build housing, commercial plus, you

         11  know, waterfront access, as well as, you know,

         12  putting into a fund some money in order to further

         13  continue the affordable housing creation.

         14                 MR. SLATTERY:  What made Battery Park

         15  City viable is two things.  One, Olympian York came

         16  in and said it was going to do the commercial

         17  entirely and made a solid commitment to fund that

         18  work.  The second part, in the early part of Battery

         19  Park City, which is Gateway Houses, if, it was a

         20  basically subsidized low income project because

         21  there was a not a strong ability to do market rate

         22  housing there.

         23                 So, Battery Park City has kind of,

         24  you know, emerged as, if you will, a market rate

         25  mixed use community.  But, it wasn't quite sure at
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          2  the beginning that it was going to be successful

          3  and, in part, a lot of that started out with a lot

          4  of subsidized housing before the market rate and all

          5  the other obligations were able to be imposed on

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Since then,

          8  would it be fair to say that they've refinanced and

          9  taken advantage of the interest rates?

         10                 MR. SLATTERY:  It's fair to say it's

         11  been successful and dramatically so.  I think there,

         12  I there are very few commercial sites left and very

         13  few housing sites left.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, you know,

         15  with the same uncertainties that Battery Park City

         16  began, I think is the same applicable to the

         17  waterfront of Greenpoint/Williamsburg, where this

         18  whole project, I agree with you, is just based on

         19  assumptions.

         20                 We don't know what the market will

         21  look like one year, two years, five years, ten years

         22  from now.  But, I do know that on the merits of what

         23  we're trying to struggle for, which is the

         24  affordable housing, the permanency of affordable

         25  housing, the preservation of a neighborhood, the
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          2  prevailing wages of making sure that families

          3  continue to be able to live there because they're

          4  making a good living and to have the ability to

          5  welcome new families to be able to all mix together

          6  is a goal, just what occurred in the  '70's with

          7  Battery Park City.

          8                 MR. SLATTERY:  The larger concern

          9  here is that housing will never be affordable as

         10  long as it's scarce.  We, as a City, have not been

         11  able to produce housing in sufficient numbers to

         12  create a certain abundance to help drive down price.

         13                 I understand, as John said, the

         14  motivation to try to impose obligations to achieve

         15  certain results, but as we try to, as we put these

         16  obligations on projects, we make that just a little

         17  bit more difficult to do and it makes it harder, and

         18  as I tried to indicate with some of our testimony,

         19  that even with 421 a benefits, without the kind of

         20  burdens that we're talking about here, we don't see,

         21  we haven't seen the levels of production

         22  historically that are going up.  We're seeing it

         23  going down, which means we have to do a lot more to

         24  produce our housing.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Where is it
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          2  going down?

          3                 MR. SLATTERY:  As I said to you, the,

          4  we went from 65,000 units a year in the  '60's to

          5  8,000 units a year in the '90's.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I see.

          7                 MR. SLATTERY:  Granted, there's been

          8  a bit of change in terms of, you know, permits are

          9  up greatly.  But, we're also looking today at

         10  historically low interest rates and there's a

         11  certain sense of which cheap money and lower rates

         12  have basically been driving a lot of these projects,

         13  as well as lenders looking to finance.  And, that's

         14  a good thing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  In addition to

         16   --

         17                 MR. SLATTERY:  That's a good thing.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  --  That,

         19  Michael, the rezonings that have been occurring.

         20                 MR. SLATTERY:  The rezonings have

         21  been occurring, but those rezonings have been so

         22  recent that they don't really account for the new

         23  production that we're seeing.  I think those are

         24  being done with the hope that we'll even see more

         25  housing in the future.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Well, I'd like

          3  to thank you and if I could just end by asking you,

          4  challenging you, in a friendly way, to just tell me

          5  how we can do this better, achieving the goals that

          6  I've set out for myself and our community, because

          7  it's just too easy for me to be told we can't do it.

          8    I continue to ask everyone, don't tell me we

          9  can't, just let's find a way, if there is a way.

         10                 MR. SLATTERY:  I, well, John could

         11  kick me if I'm saying the wrong thing, but I think,

         12  I think the problem with the discussion has been a

         13  fixed percentage and I think we should be looking at

         14  absolute numbers of housing production.  40 percent

         15  of a low number isn't a lot of housing, you know,

         16  but if you're looking at a goal, you're trying to do

         17  things to produce a lot of housing that will have a

         18  component that is affordable and that component is

         19  high because the amount of housing built is high,

         20  that's, I think, is a better thing.

         21                 MR. DOYLE:  We've had this

         22  conversation before. It comes down to the density.

         23  If you, if you, there are competing, there are

         24  competing goals here.  People want housing built,

         25  but people don't want buildings that are too dense.
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          2  They are, they are in contradiction to each other.

          3                 If you wanted to accomplish, forget

          4  about the percentage, if you want it at an absolute

          5  number, a raw number of greater affordable housing

          6  units, the way to have done it would have been to

          7  increase the FAR on the site and kept the percentage

          8  the same.

          9                 The percentage, I think that's what

         10  Mike was trying --

         11                 MR. SLATTERY:  Yeah.

         12                 MR. DOYLE:  -- To say, the percentage

         13  should be less important at the end of the day, than

         14  how many affordable units are created.  And, it's

         15  our belief, by the way, that, that the affordability

         16  should run with the benefit.  If it's a tax

         17  abatement benefit, it should expire when the benefit

         18  expires.  If it's a zoning bonus, it should expire

         19  when the zoning bonus expires.  That would give you

         20  a longer term affordability because the zoning bonus

         21  would always be there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I just to

         23  respect the Chair's wishes and end here.  But, I

         24  want to sit down and just listen to these ideas,

         25  because, right now, it's just too short of a period
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          2  to go back and forth and ask questions on what you

          3  just said and it deserves further discussion.  So,

          4  thank you.

          5                 MR. DOYLE:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Councilwoman

          7  Reyna, you have a lot of homework to do.  A lot of

          8  meetings to set up. Councilwoman James.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  One of my

         10  multi- part questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, no.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  No, actually,

         13  it will be brief, because in my head there's just so

         14  many thoughts and concerns and a lot of it has to do

         15  with economics and part of it has to do with the

         16  fact that wages in New York City have not kept pace

         17  with inflation and have not kept pace with the cost

         18  of living in the City of New York.

         19                 So, though there are competing

         20  interest, wages is a major concern in this City, as

         21  well as the need for more affordable housing and I'm

         22  thinking about the Mitchell-Lama debate and how

         23  Mitchell-Lama developments are expiring in the City

         24  of New York, and because of the crisis in affordable

         25  housing, there's this pressure to extend them.
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          2                 I know in my district if, in fact, if

          3  we were to exempt or if those developers were to opt

          4  out the Mitchell-Lama project development, five

          5  large scale developments would result in the

          6  displacement of thousands and thousands of people,

          7  primarily senior citizens.  That would have, that

          8  would be, the social implications of that and the

          9  political implications of that are just vast and

         10  wide.  So, I'm going to fight to extend that and

         11  preserve that.

         12                 To the same extent, I join again with

         13  Councilwoman Reyna to say that all of these tax

         14  benefits should be permanent and there should not be

         15  a finite period of time because wages have not kept

         16  pace with inflation.  But, that being said, I guess

         17  your bottom line is market forces really should

         18  dictate the economies of scale in

         19  Greenpoint/Williamsburg and in other development

         20  areas throughout the City of New York.  Is that

         21  pretty much --

         22                 MR. SLATTERY:  No --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  -- Your bottom

         24  line?

         25                 MR. SLATTERY:  No, I don't think
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          2  that's accurate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  No? Okay.

          4                 MR. SLATTERY:  I think that we have a

          5  crisis in housing production.  I think density,

          6  trying to produce more housing is an important

          7  thing.  I think the unique conditions here in

          8  Greenpoint/Williamsburg are, you know, we, at one

          9  point, we wanted open space, so we had a waterfront

         10  open space access plan, and now, all of sudden,

         11  that's a cost to the new housing production.

         12                 We are going on older manufacturing

         13  sites and those come with their own problems and we

         14  build in areas that have not been built for housing,

         15  but we also run into infrastructure problems.  These

         16  are all unavoidable costs and the issue, I think,

         17  which I think is, I would say indisputable, but the

         18  more dense, those costs, in some ways, are fixed

         19  costs, which is what it costs to build a waterfront.

         20    The more housing you can build the less that cost

         21  is on a per unit basis, so it's spread over a larger

         22   --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         24                 MR. SLATTERY:  -- Number.  So, from

         25  our perspective, trying to create more density helps
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          2  to mitigate some of those costs and the comparison

          3  with Battery Park City was just to say that

          4  sometimes density isn't a bad thing --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

          6                 MR. SLATTERY:  -- And it doesn't

          7  necessarily mean neighborhood destruction.  It could

          8  be an ideal neighborhood and as John said, I think

          9  it was, you know, it's an issue we kind of

         10  continually play as maybe a lost opportunity, but

         11  it's not that we don't share the goals both in terms

         12  of affordable housing production and prevailing

         13  wage, because I think most of our members who are

         14  building units in Manhattan, which are, I would call

         15  luxury buildings, are actually hiring 32BJ workers

         16  pay prevailing wages and probably 90 percent of our

         17  members in those units are actually doing that.

         18                 So, it's not something we're opposed

         19  to, but I think if you look at the median rental

         20  incomes in Manhattan. For example, in Clinton, just

         21  as an example, the median income there is $1,300.00,

         22  where in Greenpoint/Williamsburg, it's about $560.00

         23  or $570.00.  It seems that in those neighborhoods,

         24  obviously the ability, the strength of the market,

         25  the average rents there, certainly seem to suggest
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          2  that you can do more in those places than you can do

          3  in areas where the medians are less than 600 and the

          4  production is much lower.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  No, I

          6  recognize the issue of density.  I, too, am looking

          7  at the issue of density as it relates to Atlantic

          8  Yard.  For me, it's the challenges over the term or

          9  the word or your definition of what is ideal and my

         10  definition of what is ideal.  Because, I believe

         11  that we should increase density.  The question is

         12  where and when it's appropriate.  So, that being

         13  said, we can further have a discussion on this off-

         14  line.  I don't want to prolong this.

         15                 MR. SLATTERY:  Okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         17                 MR. SLATTERY:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  Thank you all.  Thank my Council Members who have

         20  sat here with me to the bitter end.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  The two

         23  items, Intro. Number 605 and proposed Intro. 607- A

         24  will be laid over.  Thanks to all you nice people

         25  out there.  Arie, thank you for staying to the
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          2  bitter end also.  This Hearing is adjourned.

          3                 (Meeting adjourned)

          4                 (Following written testimony was read

          5  into the record)

          6  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          7  T. RASUL MURRAY

          8  NAVY YARD HOUSES

          9                 At the suggestion of Councilwoman

         10  Provenzano's staff, I am submitting the following

         11  testimony for consideration by the members and

         12  inclusion in the record of the Housing Development

         13  Committee, as part of their hearing to consider

         14  INTRO 186.

         15                 My name is T. Rasul Murray.  I am an

         16  original cooperator, current Board Member and two

         17  term past president of Navy Yard Houses in Brooklyn,

         18  which is a 159 unit, HUD mortgaged, Below Market

         19  Rate (BMR) Cooperative Housing Development, created

         20  in 1968.  While my remarks here represent my own

         21  views, not those of the board, I know that other

         22  board members and cooperators share the concerns I

         23  bring to you today.

         24                 We are now within a few short years

         25  of paying off our mortgage and fully owning our
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          2  development.

          3                 Situated geographically between the

          4  New York City Housing Authority's Willoughby-

          5  Ingersol Houses to our south and Farragut Houses to

          6  our west, our development has, for some 37 years,

          7  served to assure an affordable economic "step- up"

          8  from public housing in our own neighborhood.  As our

          9  neighboring public housing residents have improved

         10  their economic condition, we have helped to assure

         11  that our community can continue to benefit from

         12  their presence, not loose them to other communities,

         13  thus assuring a continued, upwardly mobile,

         14  community owned, middle class presence in our

         15  community.

         16                 As a HUD mortgaged BMR development,

         17  we do not, directly, face the issues intended to be

         18  addressed by the legislation being considered, but

         19  we are similarly imperiled as an affordable housing

         20  presence in our community.  I appear before you

         21  today to ask that, as you consider relief for other

         22  affordable housing cooperative developments, you

         23  give some concern to Navy Yard Houses and to other

         24  similarly situated BMR cooperatives.

         25                 Once our mortgage is paid, we will
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          2  not be taken over by landlords or developers with a

          3  stake in the property, but we are no less at risk to

          4  lose our BMR status and thus be vulnerable to being

          5  lost as a community- owned resource for the

          6  Willoughby- Ingersol and Farragut community of Fort

          7  Greene.

          8                 We do not depend upon section eight

          9  funding.  Our only assurance of BMR status rests in

         10  the terms of our HUD mortgage.  Once that mortgage

         11  is satisfied, we will no longer be subject to any

         12  income requirements; will no longer be assured that

         13  we will be required to sell our shares back to the

         14  Corporation at the level of our original, modest,

         15  equity investment.

         16                 Some of us are deeply concerned that

         17  our affordable housing status could be lost with the

         18  end of HUD regulatory requirements.

         19                 The myriad recent improvement

         20  projects in the downtown Brooklyn area and the

         21  growing conversion of neighboring industrial

         22  buildings to high rent cooperative, condominium and

         23  rental properties have made Navy Yard Houses an

         24  increasingly desirable property.  And, the

         25  increasing property values around the NYCHA
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          2  projects, have increased the prospect of our

          3  becoming a neighborhood not of mixed incomes, but

          4  one of stark contrast between the rich and the poor.

          5                 My concern is that with the loss of

          6  the HUD assurance of BMR status, we might fall

          7  victim to our own success and that a sufficient

          8  number of cooperators might be lured by the

          9  prospects of windfall profit from a market value

         10  sale of their shares to prospective cooperators that

         11  they would vote to change the bylaws of the

         12  corporation to allow market value sale of cooperator

         13  shares, with the inevitable consequence of raising

         14  carrying charges to bring the amenities of the

         15  development up to the level of market value

         16  cooperator's expectations.

         17                 In the first instance, the removal of

         18  the resale of shares to the cooperative requirement,

         19  i.e. The allowance of free market share sales- would

         20  assure an end to affordable access to our housing

         21  units.  The reasonable expectation of consequent

         22  rising carrying charges would further assure that

         23  many, if not most, of the remaining middle, or fixed

         24  income, cooperators would no longer be able to

         25  afford the new carrying charges and would be forced
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          2  out of the neighborhood into the same shrinking

          3  affordable housing market that the legislation

          4  currently under consideration is meant to maintain.

          5                 While our issues do not fall within

          6  the relief that would be afforded by this proposed

          7  legislation, I hope my remarks will prompt this

          8  committee and The Council to consider ways to assure

          9  our continued presence as an affordable housing

         10  option in our neighborhood.

         11                 While those with greater expertise in

         12  such matters than myself may see numerous ways to

         13  address our need for a continued affordable housing

         14  future, one solution which occurs to me is the

         15  availability of a subsidized mortgage program which

         16  would, on one hand, address the capital needs of our

         17  aging infrastructure and, on the other, subject our

         18  development to the same or similar BMR requirements

         19  as existent under our HUD mortgage.  Because of the

         20  interest underlying the current legislation, I am

         21  asking that the Council undertake a study to

         22  determine appropriate assurances of the continued

         23  BMR status of development such as ours.

         24                 As a cooperator who has had a

         25  commitment in our development's future since its
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          2  inception, I have a deep felt personal stake in our

          3  future as an affordable housing alternative in our

          4  neighborhood.

          5                 Further, as one of the fixed income

          6  cooperators I described earlier, in lieu of the

          7  luxury of income, I have the- to me- more luxury of

          8  time and flexibility.  I can, as a consequence,

          9  willingly make myself available to lend my

         10  assistance to council members, their staffs to city

         11  or non governmental agencies concerned with finding

         12  a way to assure our continued affordable housing

         13  presence in the Navy Yard- Fort Greene community.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 1:05 p.m.)
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